
 

Agenda compiled by: 
Governance Services 
Civic Hall 
LEEDS LS1 1UR 
 

Andy Booth 
24 74325 
 
 
 

Principal Scrutiny Advisor: 
Richard Mills 
Tel: 24 74557 

  Produced on Recycled Paper 
 

A 

 

 

 

SCRUTINY BOARD (CITY AND REGIONAL PARTNERSHIPS) 
 
 

Meeting to be held in  on 
Wednesday, 17th December, 2008 at 10.00 am 

 
(A pre-meeting will take place for ALL Members of the Board at 9.30 a.m.) 

 
MEMBERSHIP 

 
Councillors 

 
B Atha - Kirkstall 

S Bentley (Chair) - Weetwood 

C Campbell - Otley and Yeadon 

G Driver - Middleton Park 

C Fox - Adel and Wharfedale 

R Harington - Gipton and Harehills 

V Kendall - Roundhay 

J Lewis - Kippax and Methley 

T Murray - Garforth and Swillington 

R Pryke - Burmantofts and Richmond 
Hill 

A Shelbrooke - Harewood 

L Yeadon - Kirkstall 

 
 

Public Document Pack



 

B 

A G E N D A 
 
 

Item 
No 

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities 

Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

1   
 

  APPEALS AGAINST REFUSAL OF INSPECTION 
OF DOCUMENTS 
 
To consider any appeals in accordance with 
Procedure Rule 25* of the Access to Information 
Procedure Rules (in the event of an Appeal the 
press and public will be excluded). 
 
(* In accordance with Procedure Rule 25, notice of 
an appeal must be received in writing by the Chief 
Democratic Services Officer at least 24 hours 
before the meeting).  
 

 

2   
 

  EXEMPT INFORMATION - POSSIBLE 
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 
1 To highlight reports or appendices which 

officers have identified as containing exempt 
information, and where officers consider that 
the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information, for the reasons 
outlined in the report. 

 
2 To consider whether or not to accept the 

officers recommendation in respect of the 
above information. 

 
3 If so, to formally pass the following 

resolution:- 
 
 RESOLVED – That the press and public be 

excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following parts of the 
agenda designated as containing exempt 
information on the grounds that it is likely, in 
view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted or the nature of the proceedings, 
that if members of the press and public were 
present there would be disclosure to them of 
exempt information, as follows:- 

 
 
 

 



 

 
C 

Item 
No 

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities 

Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

3   
 

  LATE ITEMS 
 
To identify items which have been admitted to the 
agenda by the Chair for consideration. 
 
(The special circumstances shall be specified in 
the minutes.) 
 

 

4   
 

  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
To declare any personal / prejudicial interests for 
the purpose of Section 81 (3) of the Local 
Government Act 2000 and paragraphs 8 to 12 of 
the Members Code of Conduct. 
 

 

5   
 

  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
To receive any apologies for absence. 
 

 

6   
 

  MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 
 
To receive and approve the minutes of the 
previous meeting held on 20 November 2008 
 

1 - 4 

7   
 

  ADDITIONAL SESSION - SKILLS INQUIRY 
 
To receive and consider the attached report of the 
Head of Scrutiny and Member Development. 
 

5 - 10 

8   
 

  DRAFT STATEMENT - UNIVERSITY FEES 
 
To receive and consider the attached report of the 
Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 
 

11 - 
24 

9   
 

  WORK PROGRAMME 
 
To receive and consider the attached report of the 
Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 
 

25 - 
82 

10   
 

  DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING 
 
Thursday, 15 January 2009 at 10.00 a.m. (Pre-
meeting for all Members at 09.30 a.m.) 
 

 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 17th December, 2008 
 

SCRUTINY BOARD (CITY AND REGIONAL PARTNERSHIPS) 
 

THURSDAY, 20TH NOVEMBER, 2008 
 

PRESENT: 
 

Councillor S Bentley in the Chair 

 Councillors C Campbell, G Driver, C Fox, 
R Harington, V Kendall, J Lewis and 
R Pryke 

 
 
 

34 Declarations of Interest  
 

Councillor Driver declared a personal interest in Agenda Item 37, Session 2 – 
Skills Inquiry, due to his position as a Governor at Thomas Danby College. 
 

35 Apologies for Absence  
 

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors Atha, 
Shelbrooke and Yeadon. 
 

36 Minutes of the Previous Meeting  
 

RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 23 October 2008, be 
confirmed as a correct record. 
 

37 Matters arising from the Minutes  
 

Minute No 29 – inquiry into Voluntary, Community and Faith Sector 
 
It was reported that Councillors Bentley, Driver, Harrington and Pryke would 
participate in the Board’s Working Group for this Inquiry and the possibility of 
visiting various VCFS organisations was discussed. 
 

38 Session 2 - Skills Inquiry  
 

The joint report of the Assistant Chief Executive (Planning, Policy and 
Improvement) and the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development informed 
the Board of the main areas of consideration for the second session into the 
Skills Inquiry.  It focused on the two main areas for this session, the Multi Area 
Agreement (MAA) and The Future of FE in Leeds.  Also appended to the 
report was a copy of the terms of reference for the Inquiry. 
 
It was reported that the first session of the item would look at arrangements 
under the Multi Area Agreement. 
 
The Chair welcomed the following to the meeting: 
 

• James Flanagan, Project Manager, Executive Support 

Agenda Item 6

Page 1



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 17th December, 2008 
 

• Martin Dean, Deputy Director, Leeds Initiative 
• Rob Norreys, Acting Head of Regional Policy, Executive Support 
• Carson McCoombe. City of Bradford Council 
• Cristina George, Learning Skills Council 
• Ann Craven, Learning Skills Council 
• Mandy Crawford Lee, Learning Skills Council 

 
In response to Members comments and questions, the following issues were 
discussed: 
 

• The skills related content of the MAA built on the base of the City 
Regions Development Programme. 

• The influence of the Leitch Review of Skills which identified the needs 
for improvement in skills to 2020. 

• The Leeds Metropolitan University study into the business and finance 
sector across the Leeds City Region (LCR). 

• How the MAA built on local strategies, tackled worklessness and how 
different economic areas could work together. 

• The role of the Leeds City Region Board and democratic accountability 
- it was reported that the LCR Board oversaw the MAA arrangements 
on a democratic basis, and though there were elements of the MAA 
outside local authority control, necessary checks and balances were in 
place.   

• MAA Targets - How they could improve the local economy 
- A pilot scheme cohort of 200 Small and Medium Enterprises and 

numbers of staff with level 3 and 4 qualifications and skills. 
- Ways of measuring improvement – Annual Workforce Survey, 

numbers of extra qualifications delivered. 
• Raising the demand for learning. 
• Involvement of partner organisations – Learning Skills Council, Local 

Authorities, Job Centre Plus and Others. 
• How to improve people’s skills and raise the demand for learning. 
• Training initiatives such as Train to Gain. 
• How to work with Small and Medium Enterprises to understand their 

training needs, encourage the development of their workforce and 
enable them to gain accreditation for ‘in house’ training. 

• Involvement of Higher Education institutions. 
• Basic Mathematics and English training. 
• Comparisons of skill levels nationwide and the need for continued 

investment in the Yorkshire and Humber region. 
• Role of the Sector Skills Councils. 

 
The Chair thanked those in attendance for the first part of the session and 
welcomed the following to the meeting to discuss the proposed Further 
Education (FE) College Merger in Leeds: 
 

• Cristina George – Learning Skills Council 
• Martin Dean, Deputy Director, Leeds Initiative 
• Ian Billyard, Principal – Leeds College of Building 

Page 2



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 17th December, 2008 
 

• Carolyn Wright, Principal – Joseph Priestly College 
 
The Board was reminded of the merger of FE Colleges in Leeds which would 
see Park Lane College, Thomas Danby College and the Leeds College of 
Technology form the Leeds City College from January 2009.  The proposed 
merger had arisen as a result of a review of FE in Leeds.  The Leeds College 
of Building and Joseph Priestly College had initially being included in the 
merger and had withdrawn. 
 
Ian Billyard addressed the meeting and reported on the position in relation to 
the Leeds College of Building. There had been concerns regarding the 
proposed merger from Leeds College of Building and the Board of Governors 
had decided to remain independent. This decision had also been supported 
by their industry partners. He also reported that the college was the largest 
supplier of construction training nationwide and that there were plans to move 
the college forward as a centre of excellence. 
 
With regards to Joseph Priestly College, Carolyn Wright reported that the 
Board of Governors had concern that a robust case had not been made to 
merge all 5 colleges and that their focus on South Leeds, which the college 
currently catered for would no longer be met. 
 
In brief summary, the following issues were discussed: 
 

• Differences between funding for young people and Adults. 
• Providing training for those not in education, employment or training 

(NEET).  It was reported that many learners who fell into the NEET 
category were training for basic skills and foundation learning. 

• Future capital funding arrangements for Leeds College of Building and 
Joseph Priestly College – the Joseph Priestly College’s 
accommodation strategy had been postponed due to the review of FE 
in Leeds but there were plans with the LSC for future building in South 
Leeds.  Leeds College of Building had presented an educational case 
for new buildings. 

• Allocation of funds – this was formula based across FE Colleges and 
could be affected by factors such as demand. 

• Concern regarding the duplication of FE across the city. 
 
RESOLVED –  
 

(1) That the report be noted. 
(2) That the Board request a copy of the development plan of the 

pilot scheme with Small and Medium Enterprises. 
(3) That an additional session on the Skills Inquiry be held at the 

meeting on 17th December and Principals of the Colleges which 
are to merge be invited. 

 
39 Draft Statement - University Fees  
 

Page 3



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 17th December, 2008 
 

The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development submitted a report which 
included a Draft Statement on University Fees. The Draft Statement was 
produced on the recommendation of the Board’s University Fees Working 
Group following the request of Leeds University Unions concerning University 
fees. 
 
It was reported that the Director of Children’s Services had made 
representations regarding the Draft Statement and that Recommendation 3 of 
the draft should be amended. 
 
RESOLVED – That amendments be made to the Draft as suggested, be 
circulated to Members and brought back to the Board for approval. 
 

40 Work Programme  
 

The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development submitted a report which 
outlined the Board’s current Work Programme.  Also appended to the report 
was a copy of the Forward Plan of Key Decisions and recent Executive Board 
minutes. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted. 
 

41 Date and time of next meeting  
 

Wednesday, 17 December 2008 at 10.00 a.m. (Pre-meeting for all Members 
at 09.30 a.m.) 
 
 

Page 4



 
Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 
 
Scrutiny Board (City and Regional Partnerships) 
 
Date: 17th December 2008 
 
Subject: Additional Session – Skills Inquiry 
 

        
 
 
1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1 The Board at its last meeting considered the current proposed arrangements for the 

Multi Area Agreement (MAA) in Leeds. In particular the rationale for the MAA 
(evidence based) and the proposed outcomes of the MAA, and impact on Leeds 
businesses and residents. 

 
1.2 Members also heard from the Principals of the Leeds College of Building and  

Joseph Priestley College who had decided not to participate in the merger of 3 
Further Education Colleges (FE) in the city and to remain as independent 
institutions. 

 
1.3 In view of the fact that the Principles of the FE Colleges which are to merge i.e. Park  
             Lane (Leeds and Keighley), Thomas Danby, and Leeds College of Technology were  
             unable to attend the Board’s last meeting it was agreed to hold an additional session  
             today to enable them to give evidence to the Board on the reasons for supporting  
             the merger. 
 
1.4        Members were interested to hear from the Learning and Skills Council (LSC) which  
             had led a detailed process of consultation and evidence gathering to consider the  
             future arrangements for Further Education in the city and from college principals  
             what the likely impact on employers, individuals and communities will be as a  
             consequence of the merger and on the plans for: 
 

• the new college, 
• its governance, and 
• ability to respond to skills needs 

 
1.5       The consultation document ‘Excellence and Inclusion (May 2008)’ sets out the  

Specific Implications For:  

 
Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected: All 

 
 

 

 

Originator: Richard Mills 
 
Tel:2474557 

 Ward Members consulted 
 (referred to in report)  
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 5



                benefits of this merger and an extract states that it will: 

• create a unified and successful FE presence serving Leeds and the region        
that contributes to improved economic success and social inclusion 

• make broad, coherent and comprehensive provision for young people and 
adults to the highest possible standards, whilst conserving and extending 
specialisms 

• place learners and employers at the heart of the system, enabling them to 
influence what is on offer and how it is delivered 

• ensure full access in localities and neighbourhoods for learners at all levels         
and all ability ranges, promoting inclusion 

• create excellent opportunities for employment 
• create a new city-wide FE estate for the 21st century 
• establish a new college which is financially healthy and meets national, 

regional and local needs through the employment of best value principles 

1.6     It is anticipated that the new college will be formed from 1st January 2009. 

2.0        Terms of Reference  

2.1        A copy of the Board’s approved terms of reference for this inquiry is attached for  
             reference purposes.  

3.0        Witnesses 

3.1        The following witnesses have indicated that they will attend today’s meeting: 
 

 Cristina George, Learning and Skills Council (Re-organisation of FE Colleges)  
              Maxine Room, Principal, Park Lane College (Leeds and Keighley) 
  Roy Thorpe, Principal, Thomas Danby College,  

 Martin Dean, Deputy Chief Executive, Leeds Initiative  
 
3.2         The Principal of the Leeds College of Technology, Peter Ryder unfortunately has a  
              prior engagement and is unable to attend the meeting today. 

                                                                                  
4.0        Recommendations 
 
4.1       The Board is asked to 
 

(i) Receive the report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development and 
comment on and ask questions of the witnesses present. 

(ii) Consider what, if any, further information or points of clarification the Board 
requires to conclude Session 2 of its inquiry. 

(iii) Discuss any subsequent issues.  
(iv) Identify for the Board’s next session of its Inquiry on 15th January 2009 the 

witnesses it would like to hear evidence from. 
 

Background Papers 

None used 

Page 6



 

Scrutiny Board (City & Regional Partnerships) 
 

Inquiry into Skills 
 

Terms of Reference 
 

1.0 Introduction 

1.1 On 3rd July the City & Regional Partnerships Scrutiny Board agreed to carry 
out an inquiry into skills. 

 
1.2 In particular, it was decided to investigate the following three individual areas: 
 

(a) Leeds Strategic Plan incorporating the Leeds Local Area Agreement 
 

           The background, activity and contribution of all interested parties towards 
achieving the relevant improvement priorities and targets contained within the 
LSP and any future plans in this regard. Two improvement priorities in the 
Leeds Strategic Plan particularly address the issue of improving skill levels to 
level 2 or higher, with reference to workforce development. 

 
 (b) Leeds City Region Multi Area Agreement (MAA), 

 
 The MAA for the Leeds city region has been developed to help close the gap 

in higher level skills, and reduce transport congestion across the city region, 
as identified within the City Region Development Programme (CRDP).  The 
MAA was signed off in July by the eleven City Region Local Authority Leaders 
and government. 

 
(c) The future of Further Education (FE) in Leeds 

 
 The Learning and Skills Council has consulted on the merger of Park Lane, 

Thomas Danby and Leeds College of technology to form a new Leeds 
College.  The three colleges have agreed to the merger proposal, and it is 
expected there will be substantial investment in the FE estate.   
 
 

2.0 Scope of the inquiry 
 
2.1 The purpose of the Inquiry is to make an assessment of, and, where 

appropriate make recommendations on, the following areas of interest: 
 

(a) Leeds Strategic Plan incorporating the Leeds Local Area Agreement 
 
           The activity and contribution of all interested parties towards achieving the   
           relevant improvement priorities and targets contained within the LSP and  
           any future plans in this regard.  
 

(b) The Leeds City Region MAA 
 
The focus of the MAA skills proposals, which is on higher level skills (NVQ 
levels 3 / 4 +) in priority business sectors. 

 
 
 
 

Page 7



 

           (c) The future of FE in Leeds. 
 

To ascertain the extent that the merger will bring about improved learning 
outcomes for employers, individuals and communities. 

 
3.0 Comments of the relevant Director and Executive Board Member 
 
3.1 The Directors of City Development and Environment & Neighbourhoods, and 

the relevant Executive Board Members have been requested to comment on 
these terms of reference. 

 
4.0 Timetable for the Inquiry  
 
4.1 The inquiry will take place over 6 sessions with a view to issuing a final report 

in April 2009.  
 
5.0 Submission of evidence 
 
5.1 The following formal evidence gathering sessions have been scheduled: 
 
5.2 Session 1 – 23rd October 2008 
 
           Introduction to the LAA, MAA and FE 
 

To consider the background and relationships of the LAA, MAA and FE in 
contributing towards meeting the target indicators with our partners as set out 
in the Council’s Strategic Plan 2008/2011. It will also cover the scope and the 
rationale behind the targets which have been set. 

 
5.3 Session 2 – 20th November 2008 
 

The Leeds City Region MAA 
 
The purpose of this part of the session is to consider the current proposed 
arrangements for the MAA in Leeds.  In particular the Board will consider: 
 

• The rationale for the MAA (evidence base). 

• The proposed outcomes of the MAA, and impact on Leeds businesses 
and residents. 

 
          The future of FE in Leeds 
 

This part of the session is to consider the proposed merger of 3 FE 
colleges in the city and the likely impact on employers, individuals and 
communities and to seek input from LSC, college principals and Leeds Skills 
Board on the plans for: 
 

• the new college, 

• its governance, and 

• ability to respond to skills needs. 

Page 8



 

 
5.4 Session 3 – 15th January 2009 
 

The Leeds City Region MAA 
 

The purpose of this part of Session 3 is to consider any information requested 
from the previous session and examine any possible future developments to 
the MAA, eg City Region approaches to tackling worklessness. 

 
           The future of FE in Leeds 
 

The purpose of this part of the session is to consider any information 
requested from the previous session and further matters relating to the merger 
of the 3 colleges and its impact in Leeds.  

 
5.5 Session 4  - 26th February 2009  
 

Leeds Strategic Plan incorporating the Leeds Local Area Agreement  
 
The purpose of this session is to look at how are partners who have signed up   
to the LAA are delivering on the targets that have been set and to hear about    
the changes they are making in order that they can meet those targets.  

           It will also explore individuals who are post school who have no  
           qualifications/ no level 1 and the extent to which services are effective.  

  
5.6  Session 5 - 26th March 2009 
 

Leeds Strategic Plan incorporating the Leeds Local Area Agreement 
 
The purpose of this session is to continue hearing evidence from the parties 
signed up to the relevant improvement priorities and targets in the LSP and 
any information requested from the previous session.  

 
5.7      Session 6 – 30th April 2009 
 
           Final Report and Recommendations 
 

The purpose of this Session is to consider the Board’s draft inquiry report and 
recommendations. 

 
6.0 Witnesses 
 
6.1 The following witnesses have been identified as possible contributors to the 

Inquiry: 

• Director of City Development 

• Director of Environment & Neighbourhoods 

• Relevant officers from the City Development and Environment and 
Neighbourhoods Departments 

• Head of Regional Policy 

• Key partners such as: Bradford Council (MAA skills lead), WY 
Universities, Learning and Skills Council, and Yorkshire Forward 
(Regional Development Agency), FE Principals, Shadow Board of the 
proposed new college, Leeds Skills Board. 

 
 Page 9



 

7.0 Monitoring Arrangements 
 
7.1 Following the completion of the scrutiny inquiry and the publication of the final 

inquiry report and recommendations, the implementation of the agreed 
recommendations will be monitored.   

 
7.2 The final inquiry report will include information on the detailed arrangements 

for monitoring the implementation of the Board’s recommendations. 
 
8.0 Measures of success 
 
8.1 It is important to consider how the Board will deem whether its inquiry has 

been successful in making a difference to local people. Some measures of 
success may be obvious at the initial stages of an inquiry and can be included 
in these terms of reference. Other measures of success may become 
apparent as the inquiry progresses and discussions take place. 

 
8.2 The Board will look to publish practical recommendations. 

Page 10



 
 
Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 
 
Scrutiny Board (City & Regional Partnerships) 
 
Date:  17th December 2008 
 
Subject:   Draft Statement University Fees     
 

        
 
 

 
 
1.0 Introduction 
 

1.1 At its meeting on 20th November 2008 Members considered a draft Statement on 
University Fees in response to a request for scrutiny from representatives of Leeds 
University Unions. 

 
1.2 In the light of the comments reported to the Board from the Director of Children’s 

Services, Members agreed that the Statement should be amended, the revised 
version circulated to all Members of the Board by email and submitted to today’s 
meeting for consideration. 

 
2.0        Draft Statement 
 
2.1 A copy of the revised draft Statement is attached for Members consideration which  
             has 3 additional paragraphs 13 (which sets out the Director of Children’s Services  
             comments), 14 and 15 and a new recommendation 3. 
    
3.0 Recommendation 
 
3.1 Members are asked to consider and approve the revised draft Statement on  
              University Fees. 
 

Background Papers 

None used 

Specific Implications For:  

 
Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  All 

 
 

 

 

Originator: Richard Mills 
 
Tel: 2474557  

Agenda Item 8

Page 11



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
Scrutiny Board (City & Regional Partnerships) – Statement on  

University Fees – November 2008 scrutiny.unit@leeds.gov.uk 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  

 

Draft Statement of  
 
 

Scrutiny Board (City & 
Regional Partnerships) 

  
on 

 
University Fees 

Page 13



 

 
Scrutiny Board (City & Regional Partnerships) – Statement on  

University Fees – November 2008 scrutiny.unit@leeds.gov.uk 

 

Introduction  

Introduction 
 
1.    At its meeting on the 21st July    
       2008 Scrutiny Board (City &  
       Regional Partnerships) considered  
       a request for scrutiny from the  
       University of Leeds Student Union   
       concerning their University Fees  
       campaign and the impact students  
       have on the Leeds economy. 
 
2.   The Board established a Working  

Group to consider this request and 
determine what further action, if 
any, it wished to take concerning 
the Government’s proposals to 
remove the ceiling for University 
Fees in April 2009 and the 
economic impact students from our 
two Universities have on the local 
economy.  
 

3. The drivers for this are set out in   
the Strategic Outcome of the 
Council’s Strategic Plan 2008-2011 
“to have an enhanced workforce 
that will meet future challenges 
through fulfilling individual and 
economic potential and investing in 
learning facilities” and in the 
improvement priority to “enhance 
the skill levels of the workforce to 
fulfil individual and economic 
potential”. 

 
4. The Working Group was delighted 

to meet our external partners 
Professor Vivien Jones, pro-Vice- 
Chancellor, University of Leeds and 
Steve Denton, pro-Vice- 
Chancellor, Leeds Metropolitan 
University and representatives from 

the University Unions who helped 
Members with their deliberations. 

 
5. The Scrutiny Board on the 23rd 

October 2008 accepted the 
recommendations of its Working 
Group of 17th October not to 
undertake a formal inquiry but that 
a statement is prepared for 
consideration by the Board at its 
meeting on the 20th November 
2008. 

 
6. This report provides detail of the 

discussion held and puts forward a 
number of recommendations.  

 
7. On the statements made by the 

witnesses present the following 
report represents the general 
consensus of the Members. 

 
8. The Working Group would like to 

thank the University Union 
representatives, pro-Vice- 
Chancellors and officers who 
assisted us with this piece of work. 

 
 
 

Page 14



 

 
Scrutiny Board (City & Regional Partnerships) – Statement on  

University Fees – November 2008 scrutiny.unit@leeds.gov.uk 

Comments and 
Recommendations 
1. Our Working Group met on the 17th 

October 2008 (see appendix 1) and 
we considered with the pro-Vice- 
Chancellors  from the University of 
Leeds and Leeds Metropolitan 
University and representatives from 
the University Unions and the City 
Development department the 
following papers  
• Extract of minute from Scrutiny 

Board (City Development 21st 
July 2008) 

• Report of the Head of Scrutiny 
and Member Development on 
the request for scrutiny from  

          Leeds University Union 
• Report of the Leeds University 

Union  
• Report of the Director of City 

Development  “The Local 
Economic Impact of Students at 
Leeds’ Two Universities 

 
2.  We were informed by the University  
     Unions of the current funding  
     model for tuition fees and the 
     potential impact on Leeds, if the  
     cap on fees is removed following  
     the Government’s review in 2009.  
 
3.  Issues identified and discussed  
     included 

• The expectation that as fees rise 
the number of students staying in 
their home towns is likely to 
increase and the numbers of 
applicants for higher education 
funding to fall. 

• Recognition that the Leeds 
Metropolitan University have a 
distinctive and pioneering 
approach to full time 
undergraduate fees and that it 
has only charged £2,000 since 

the introduction of differential 
fees. 

• That higher fees may result in 
students shopping around for 
Universities who are charging 
lower undergraduate fees but 
who may not be providing the 
best or most suitable course. 

• That market forces may result in 
less popular universities closing.  

• That Post 16 student levels in 
Leeds were not currently high 
enough to meet targets as 
outlined in the Leeds Strategic 
Plan and higher fees could have 
an adverse effect on the number 
of students moving into higher 
education. 

• The concern that higher fees 
would make it difficult for people 
from social or economically 
disadvantaged backgrounds to 
apply for University places. 

• Recognition that the least well off 
will be the first group of potential 
students not to be able to afford 
to go to University even in their 
home town if University fees 
increase further unless proper 
support is offered through 
bursaries. 

• That the local economic impact 
of Leeds’ two universities is 
substantial.  They are 
responsible for over £1.3bn of 
output and 17,600 full time 
equivalent (fte) jobs.  Leeds’ 
Gross Value Added (GVA , a 
measure of output) is around 
£15.3bn and there are around 
388,000 fte jobs so the 
universities’ contribution is 
around 9% and 5% respectively. 
They also supply graduates each 
year to the local economy. 

Page 15



 

 
Scrutiny Board (City & Regional Partnerships) – Statement on  

University Fees – November 2008 scrutiny.unit@leeds.gov.uk 

Comments and 
Recommendations 

• That within these figures the 
impact of students themselves 
was smaller, but the wider impact 
was dependent on the 
universities attracting students in 
the first place. 

• That the student population of 
Leeds contributed 10% of the 
city’s economic input and 5% of 
employment. 

• That a third of graduates went on 
to employment in Leeds 

• That the figures (See appendix 
2) are conservative because they 
are based on slightly dated input 
data, and the impact of 
conference and events 
expenditure, and the universities’ 
substantial role in supporting 
local business competitiveness 
and innovation were not 
quantified in the report of the 
Director of City Development. 

 
4. We were advised that both  
      Universities want a properly funded  

higher education system, but 
recognise the high costs of high 
volume progression to higher 
education. Appropriate financial 
support for students is crucial in 
this context. The pro-Vice 
Chancellor of Leeds Metropolitan 
University referred to the fact that 
they do have a ‘low charging high 
impact’ policy in this regard.  

 
5.  We recognise that Equality and  
     Diversity are embedded in the  
     Leeds Strategic Plan and the  
     Council Business plan, with a  
     number of strategic outcomes and   
     priorities being directly linked to    
     equality and diversity issues.  The   

     Council has an Equality and 
Diversity Scheme which includes 
an Action Plan outlining in more 
detail how equality objectives will 
be achieved. We take the view that 
a University system that is fair to all 
sections of our community is 
fundamental to meeting these 
objectives. 

 
6.  From the evidence presented to us 

we concluded that there should be 
adequate funding of Higher 
Education without removing the 
cap on University fees. 

 
 
  Recommendation 1 
 
  That local MPs be asked to give   
  their support to the view that there  
  should be adequate funding of  
  Higher Education without  
  removing the cap on fees. 
 
 
 
7. We heard from representatives of  
    the University Unions that bursary  
    schemes and access to funding  
    varies from University to University  
    and is often complex and difficult to  
    understand. 
 
8. It was suggested to us by the  
    University Unions that there was a  
    massive under spend on bursary  
    schemes in Leeds. Administration of  
    bursaries was overseen by each  
    University across the UK, was  
    unregulated and each applied  
    different conditions and  
    criteria to those wishing to apply. 
 

Page 16



 

 
Scrutiny Board (City & Regional Partnerships) – Statement on  

University Fees – November 2008 scrutiny.unit@leeds.gov.uk 

Comments and 
Recommendations 
9. The University of Leeds pro-Vice-

Chancellor stated that where there 
was under spend against budget on 
bursaries, this under spend was 
used for widening access activities. 
The pro-Vice-Chancellor for the 
Leeds Metropolitan University stated 
that they do not have a bursary 
scheme, given their distinctive ‘low 
charging high impact’ approach to 
fees. They both acknowledged the 
complexity and difficulty in applying 
for such help. 

 

  
Recommendation 2 
 

 To complement recommendation 1     
 MPs and the Chief Executive   
 Education Leeds should be asked  
 to support the introduction of a  
 single national bursary system that  
 is easy to understand and access 
 through consistent and transparent  
 processes. 
 
 

10.  We acknowledged the collaborative  
      work that already exists between  
      the two Universities and the City  
      Council. 
 

11. We noted the fact that both  
      Universities want to increase and  
      improve the quality of information,  
      advice and guidance that is  
      provided to their students  
      particularly around bursaries and  
      fees and acknowledged the        
      work they had already done in this  
      regard.  We were asked if the   
      Council would be prepared to  
      consider some jointly funded post  
      with the Universities to develop    
      this area of work. 

12. We considered the establishment of  
       a suitable post funded jointly by  
     the Universities and the City   
     Council to be worthy of further  
     investigation. 
 

13.  We received the following   
       comments from the Director of  
       Children’s Services with regard to   
       this proposal and our draft   
       recommendation  
 

“A distinction should be made 
between the services provided by 
Connexions and those provided by 
the Universities. Connexions PAs 
work with students prior to entry to 
University.  Once at University, 
they become the responsibility of 
that institution and are referred to 
them for advice on fees, finance, 
accommodation, welfare, careers. 

 
The proposal does not make it 
wholly clear which students this 
post holder would be working with, 
although point 11 on page 5 of the 
report would seem to imply that it is 
only to work with the students at 
the Leeds Universities.  This being 
the case, these students do not fall 
within the current guidance 
requirements for Connexions 
services, and are wholly the 
responsibility of the Universities, 
who are funded separately to 
provide this sort of service.  

 
Information on finances and fees 
for higher education is provided by 
DCFS, by UCAS and by the 
Student Loans Company.  This 
information is distributed to PAs 
working in local schools and 
colleges to assist them in the 

Page 17



 

 
Scrutiny Board (City & Regional Partnerships) – Statement on  

University Fees – November 2008 scrutiny.unit@leeds.gov.uk 

Comments and 
Recommendations 

guidance they provide to 
individuals.   

 
Major changes are currently being 
made to support services for HE 
candidates. Those applying to HE 
for a 2009 start will be able to 
access IAG on student finance 
from a central unit known as 
Student Finance England. The 
main vehicle for this will be online, 
but there will also be a centralised 
telephone and e-mail service. 
There will be regional partnerships 
linked to partner organisations and 
there will be a Practitioners’ 
Helpline and website. From 2009 
most applications for student 
finance will be online and there will 
be earlier processing of 
applications. Candidates will be 
able to apply for finance at the 
same time as they make their 
UCAS application and the system 
will be detailed enough to provide 
information on fees charged at 
each University and on bursaries / 
grants  available for different 
income levels.  Student Finance 
England believe their website will 
be straightforward and easy to 
follow and will supply all the 
information needed by a young 
person to make sensible choices.” 
 

14. We take cognizance of the 
Director’s comments and the 
changes that will be introduced in 
2009. However, we feel that in 
referring to the following extract 
from the national TellUs 2 
Questionnaire published by Ofsted 
in November 2007 that there is a 
long way to go to improve the 
accessibility and the quality of 

information that is being provided to 
our young people.  
 
Table 6c : What do you hope to 
do when you leave school? (Tick 
one box only) 

Get a job at 16    16  
Study and get a job at 18  17  
Study and go to university   50  
Something else      7 
Don't know              10 

Table 6d : What do you think of 
the information and help you get 
to plan your future? e.g. 
choosing subject options and 
thinking about jobs and careers 
(Tick one box only) (YEAR 8 & 10 
ONLY) 

It’s good enough   36 
 Need a little more or better   
           information and advice 39 

Need a lot more or better  
information and advice 16 
Don’t know what there is   9 

Table 6f: Thinking about all of 
the things that have been 
covered in the survey, what if 
anything, would do most to 
make your life better? (Tick one 
box only) 

More organised activities 
and things to do   13 
More places where I can 
go to hang out with my 
friends                       30 
More chance to have a 
say in how things are run  
at school or in the local 
area                5 
More ways I can volunteer 
or  help people    3 
More or better advice  
about being healthy    3 
More help to do better 
at school     5 

Page 18



 

 
Scrutiny Board (City & Regional Partnerships) – Statement on  

University Fees – November 2008 scrutiny.unit@leeds.gov.uk 

Comments and 
Recommendations 

More help to plan for my future 17 
      More help to feel safer at  
      school and in the local area     7 
      None of these       6 
      Don’t know     12 
 

15.  We feel that the funding arrangements 
described by the Director of Children’s 
services in paragraph 13 of our report 
creates an artificial separation of 
responsibility between the Universities 
and the Council for advising our young 
people. 
 
 Recommendation 3 
 
 That the Director of Children’s   
 Services and the Chief Executive of   
 Education Leeds be asked to report  
 back to this Board in April 2009 on   
 what initiatives they are  
 developing to promote greater  
 coordination and  cooperation and  
 flexibility between the Universities  
 and the Council to help improve the  
 information, advice and guidance  
 provided to our young people,  
 particularly in relation to university  
 application processes and  
 application for financial support. 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 19



 

 
Scrutiny Board (City & Regional Partnerships) – Statement on  

University Fees – November 2008 scrutiny.unit@leeds.gov.uk 

  

        Appendix 1 

 
 
 
Witnesses Heard 
 
 
 

• Professor Vivien Jones, pro-Vice-Chancellor, University of Leeds 
 
• Steve Denton, pro-Vice-Chancellor, Leeds Metropolitan University 

 
• Danial Adilypour, Education Officer, University of Leeds Student Union 

 
• Will Watson, Education Officer, Leeds Metropolitan University Student Union 

 
• Thomas Holvey, Senior Policy & Information Officer, City Development  

 
• Garry Milner, Head of  14-19 Strategy, Education Leeds 

  
• Mr Rob Damiao, Community Officer, Leeds University Union 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dates of Scrutiny (to date) 
 

• 21st July 2008 Scrutiny Board (City & Regional Partnerships) 
 
• 17th October 2008 University Fees Working Group 

 
• 23rd October Scrutiny Board (City & Regional Partnerships) 

 
• 20th November Scrutiny Board (City & Regional Partnerships) 

Page 20



 

 
Scrutiny Board (City & Regional Partnerships) – Statement on  

University Fees – November 2008 scrutiny.unit@leeds.gov.uk 

  

        Appendix 1 

Scrutiny Board (City & Regional Partnerships)                         
                                       University Fees Working Group 
 

  Meeting held on 17th October 2008 
 

                                                        Present:  
 

            Councillor Sue Bentley (Chair) 
 Councillor Bernard Atha 
 Councillor Valerie Kendall 
 Councillor James Lewis 

   
  Others in Attendance: 

Professor Vivien Jones, pro-Vice Chancellor, University of Leeds 
Steve Denton, pro -Vice Chancellor, Leeds Metropolitan University 

Danial Adilypour, Education Officer, University of Leeds Student Union 
Will Watson, Education Officer, Leeds Metropolitan University Union  

Thomas Holvey, Senior Policy & Information Officer, City Development  
                           Garry Milner, Head of 14-19 Strategy, Education Leeds  
                          Richard Mills, Principal Scrutiny Adviser, Democratic Services 
 
1.0 Apologies and Welcome 
 
1.1 Apologies were reported from Rob Damiao, Community Officer, Leeds 

University Union and Councillor Lucinda Yeadon.  
 
1.2      The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting and in particular Professor 

Vivien Jones, Steve Denton, Danial Adilypour and Will Watson. 
 
2.0 Request for Scrutiny 
 
2.1      The Chair referred to the request for scrutiny which the Board had considered  
           on the 21st July from members of the University of Leeds Student Union with  
           regard to their fees campaign.  
 
2.2 The Chair reported that the Board had deferred consideration of their request 

and established this working group to consider if an inquiry was appropriate 
and if so  consider suitable terms of reference. 

 
3.0 Background Papers 
 
3.1      The Chair referred to the documents which had been circulated to everyone  
           present. 
 
 

Page 21



 

 
Scrutiny Board (City & Regional Partnerships) – Statement on  

University Fees – November 2008 scrutiny.unit@leeds.gov.uk 

  

        Appendix 1 

4.0 Issues and Comments 
 

4.1      A number of issues were identified and comments made during the  
           discussion including: 

• The Council’s Strategic Plan and FE 
          The Government’s proposals to remove the ceiling on University Fees  
          and that both universities wish to see a properly funded higher  
          education system 
• The desire of the Universities to provide better support and information 

to its students and the work that has already been undertaken in this 
regard 

• The fact that bursary schemes vary from university to university and 
are often complex and difficult to understand  

• Leeds Metropolitan University complements Leeds University and are 
meeting different student needs and not in direct competition 

• The need to continue to improve the infrastructure of the city 
• School results and courses available 
• That both Universities encourage wider participation through outreach 

work with primary and secondary schools 
• The Aim Higher Education Project 
• The work and importance of the Leeds Benefits Service 
• The collaborative work that already exists between the two Universities 

and the City Council  
 

5.0 Proposed Actions 
 

5.1    Members identified 
 

(a) The fact that both Universities want to provide more information, advice 
and guidance to potential students in Leeds particularly around bursaries 
and fees and has asked whether the Council would be prepared to 
consider some jointly funded post with the Universities. 

 
(b) That local MPs be asked to give their support to the view that there should 

be adequate funding of Higher Education without removing the cap on 
fees. This should be complemented by a single national bursary system 
that is easy to understand and access through consistent and transparent 
processes.   

       
6.0       Recommendations of the Member Working Group 
 
6.1 The Working Group recommended to Scrutiny Board (City & Regional  
             Partnerships)  that it request a draft statement to be prepared for its  
             consideration incorporating the proposed actions identified in paragraph 5    
             above.

Page 22



 

 
Scrutiny Board (City & Regional Partnerships) – Statement on  

University Fees – November 2008 scrutiny.unit@leeds.gov.uk 

  

        Appendix 2 

 
STRATHCLYDE MODEL RESULTS 
 
The combined impacts of Leeds Metropolitan University and the University of Leeds 
are presented here.  
 

Economic impact of LMU and UL 
 Impact of 

university 
expenditure 

Impact of 
UK students 
(based on 
50,696 no.) 

Impact of 
international 
students 
(based on 
7,728 no.) 

Combined 
impact 

1. Direct 
output 
(=turnover), 
£m 

529 0 0 529 

2. Secondary 
output, £m 

824 (550) 411 (240) 60(38)* 1,295 (828) 

3. Total 
output 
generated, £m 
(1+2) 

1,353 (1,079) 411 (240) 60(38)* 1,824 (1,357) 

4. Direct 
employment, 
fte 

8,494 0 0 8,494 

5. Secondary 
employment, 
fte 

8,907 (6,394) 3,631 (2,320) 550 (373) 13,088 (9,087) 

6. Total 
employment 
generated, fte 
(4+5) 

17,401 (14,888) 3,631 (2,320) 550 (373) 21,582 (17,581) 

7. Export 
earnings, £m 

57 0 39 96 

All figures in brackets are the regional impact which comprises part of the main figure 
*Generated from £39m of off-campus expenditure (see row 7) 
All financial estimates rounded to nearest million 
Fte = full-time equivalents (1 full-time job=2 part-time) 
LMU figures based on 2006-7, UL on 2005-6 input data 
GVA = Gross Value Added 
 
 
 

Page 23



Page 24

This page is intentionally left blank



 
Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 
 
Scrutiny Board (City and Regional Partnerships) 
 
Date: 17th December 2008 
 
Subject: Current Work Programme 
 

        
 
 
 
1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1 Appendix 1 to this report  provides Members with a copy of the Board’s current 

Work Programme.  
 
1.2 Appendix 2 is the current Forward Plan of Key Decisions for the period 1st 

December 2008 to 31st March 2009. 
 
1.3 Appendix 3 provides Members of the Board with the latest Executive Board minutes 
 
2.0 Recommendations 
 
2.1 The Board is requested to: 

 
(i) Determine from these documents whether there are any additional items the 

Board would wish to add to its Work Programme. 
 
(ii) Receive and make any changes to the attached Work Programme following 

decisions made at today’s meeting. 
 

 

Background Papers 

None used 

Specific Implications For:  
 
Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected: All 
 

 

 

 

Originator: Richard Mills 
 
Tel:247 4557  

 Ward Members consulted 
 (referred to in report)  
 

Agenda Item 9

Page 25



Page 26

This page is intentionally left blank



S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 B
O
A
R
D
 (
C
IT
Y
 &
 R
E
G
IO
N
A
L
 P
A
R
T
N
E
R
S
H
IP
S
) 
O
U
T
L
IN
E
 W

O
R
K
 P
R
O
G
R
A
M
M
E
 (
D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r)
 2
0
0
8
  
A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 1
 

K
e
y
: 
 

C
C
F
A
 /
 R
F
S
 –
 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 c
a
ll 
fo
r 
a
c
ti
o
n
 /
 r
e
q
u
e
s
t 
fo
r 
s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

R
P
 –
  
R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
e
x
is
ti
n
g
 p
o
lic
y
 

D
P
 –
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
n
e
w
 p
o
lic
y
 

M
S
R
 –
 M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

P
M
 –
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

B
 –
 B
ri
e
fi
n
g
s
 (
In
c
lu
d
in
g
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
a
re
a
s
 f
o
r 
s
c
ru
ti
n
y
) 

S
C
 –
 S
ta
tu
to
ry
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

C
I 
–
 C
a
ll 
in
 

It
e
m
 

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 

N
o
te
s
 

T
y
p
e
 o
f 

it
e
m
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 d
a
te
 –
 1
7
th
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 f
o
r 
re
c
e
ip
t 
o
f 
R
e
p
o
rt
s
 2
8
th
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 

 A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
S
e
s
s
io
n
 

S
k
ill
s
 I
n
q
u
ir
y
 

  

 T
o
 h
e
a
r 
fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 P
ri
n
c
ip
a
ls
 o
f 
th
e
 

m
e
rg
e
d
 c
o
lle
g
e
s
  

 T
h
e
 B
o
a
rd
 h
e
a
rd
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 P
ri
n
c
ip
a
ls
 

o
f 
th
e
 F
E
 C
o
lle
g
e
s
 w
h
ic
h
 h
a
d
 n
o
t 

jo
in
e
d
 t
h
e
 m
e
rg
e
r 
a
t 
it
s
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 o
n
 

2
0
th
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
 

   

 R
P
/D
P
 

 U
n
iv
e
rs
it
y
 F
e
e
s
 D
ra
ft
 S
ta
te
m
e
n
t 

 

 T
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
a
 r
e
v
is
e
d
 d
ra
ft
 

S
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
o
n
 U
n
iv
e
rs
it
y
 f
e
e
s
 

    

 T
h
is
 w
a
s
 r
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 a
t 
th
e
 B
o
a
rd
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 o
n
 2
0
th
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 

 

T
ra
c
k
in
g
 R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

T
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
a
 r
e
p
o
rt
 o
n
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 i
n
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 B
o
a
rd
’s
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 d
a
te
. 

    

 
 M
S
R
 

Page 27



S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 B
O
A
R
D
 (
C
IT
Y
 &
 R
E
G
IO
N
A
L
 P
A
R
T
N
E
R
S
H
IP
S
) 
O
U
T
L
IN
E
 W

O
R
K
 P
R
O
G
R
A
M
M
E
 (
D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r)
 2
0
0
8
  
A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 1
 

K
e
y
: 
 

C
C
F
A
 /
 R
F
S
 –
 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 c
a
ll 
fo
r 
a
c
ti
o
n
 /
 r
e
q
u
e
s
t 
fo
r 
s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

R
P
 –
  
R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
e
x
is
ti
n
g
 p
o
lic
y
 

D
P
 –
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
n
e
w
 p
o
lic
y
 

M
S
R
 –
 M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

P
M
 –
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

B
 –
 B
ri
e
fi
n
g
s
 (
In
c
lu
d
in
g
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
a
re
a
s
 f
o
r 
s
c
ru
ti
n
y
) 

S
C
 –
 S
ta
tu
to
ry
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

C
I 
–
 C
a
ll 
in
 

It
e
m
 

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 

N
o
te
s
 

T
y
p
e
 o
f 

it
e
m
 

 
M
e
e
ti
n
g
 d
a
te
 –
 1
5
th
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
  
2
0
0
9
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 f
o
r 
re
c
e
ip
t 
o
f 
R
e
p
o
rt
s
 2
9
th
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 

S
e
s
s
io
n
 3
 I
n
q
u
ir
y
 i
n
to
 S
k
ill
s
 

T
h
is
 S
e
s
s
io
n
 i
s
 t
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
a
n
y
 

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 r
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 

p
re
v
io
u
s
 s
e
s
s
io
n
 a
n
d
 e
x
a
m
in
e
 a
n
y
 

p
o
s
s
ib
le
 f
u
tu
re
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

M
A
A
, 
e
g
 C
it
y
 R
e
g
io
n
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
e
s
 t
o
 

ta
c
k
lin
g
 w
o
rk
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

m
a
tt
e
rs
 r
e
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 m
e
rg
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
 

3
 F
E
 c
o
lle
g
e
s
 a
n
d
 i
ts
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
in
 

L
e
e
d
s
. 

T
h
e
 B
o
a
rd
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 t
e
rm

s
 o
f 

re
fe
re
n
c
e
 f
o
r 
th
is
 i
n
q
u
ir
y
 a
t 
it
s
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 i
n
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
fo
llo
w
in
g
 a
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 S
k
ill
s
 

W
o
rk
in
g
 g
ro
u
p
 i
t 
e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 e
a
rl
ie
r 

in
 t
h
e
 y
e
a
r 

R
P
/D
P
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
R
e
p
o
rt
 o
n
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

a
g
a
in
s
t 
th
e
 L
e
e
d
s
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
la
n
 

  

T
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 a
n
 A
n
n
u
a
l 
R
e
p
o
rt
 o
n
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
th
e
 L
e
e
d
s
 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
la
n
 

A
t 
th
e
 B
o
a
rd
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 i
n
 J
u
n
e
 2
0
0
8
 

o
ff
ic
e
rs
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
is
 

B
o
a
rd
 w
a
s
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
ly
 p
la
c
e
d
 t
o
 

ta
k
e
 a
n
 o
v
e
rv
ie
w
 o
f 
th
is
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 

  
M
S
R
 

In
v
it
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C
h
ie
f 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 a
n
d
 

C
h
a
ir
 o
f 
th
e
 L
e
e
d
s
 I
n
it
ia
ti
v
e
 

N
a
rr
o
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 G
a
p
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

 

T
o
 h
e
a
r 
fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 C
h
ie
f 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 o
n
 

w
o
rk
 b
e
in
g
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 N
a
rr
o
w
 t
h
e
 

G
a
p
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 o
u
r 
p
a
rt
n
e
r 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 

T
h
e
 C
h
ie
f 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 h
a
s
 a
g
re
e
d
 t
o
 

a
tt
e
n
d
 t
h
e
 B
o
a
rd
 o
n
 t
h
e
 1
5
th
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 

2
0
0
9
. 
T
h
e
 B
o
a
rd
 a
g
re
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
it
 

w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 t
o
 m
o
n
it
o
r 

p
ro
g
re
s
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 s
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
 o
f 

a
 q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 o
r 
h
a
lf
 y
e
a
rl
y
 r
e
p
o
rt
 t
o
 

th
is
 B
o
a
rd
 &
 f
ro
m
 o
u
r 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 o
n
 

th
e
ir
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 &
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
e
s
. 
 

 

  
P
M
 

Page 28



S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 B
O
A
R
D
 (
C
IT
Y
 &
 R
E
G
IO
N
A
L
 P
A
R
T
N
E
R
S
H
IP
S
) 
O
U
T
L
IN
E
 W

O
R
K
 P
R
O
G
R
A
M
M
E
 (
D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r)
 2
0
0
8
  
A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 1
 

K
e
y
: 
 

C
C
F
A
 /
 R
F
S
 –
 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 c
a
ll 
fo
r 
a
c
ti
o
n
 /
 r
e
q
u
e
s
t 
fo
r 
s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

R
P
 –
  
R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
e
x
is
ti
n
g
 p
o
lic
y
 

D
P
 –
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
n
e
w
 p
o
lic
y
 

M
S
R
 –
 M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

P
M
 –
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

B
 –
 B
ri
e
fi
n
g
s
 (
In
c
lu
d
in
g
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
a
re
a
s
 f
o
r 
s
c
ru
ti
n
y
) 

S
C
 –
 S
ta
tu
to
ry
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

C
I 
–
 C
a
ll 
in
 

It
e
m
 

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 

N
o
te
s
 

T
y
p
e
 o
f 

it
e
m
 

 
M
e
e
ti
n
g
 d
a
te
 –
  
2
6
th
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
0
9
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 f
o
r 
re
c
e
ip
t 
o
f 
R
e
p
o
rt
s
 6

th
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
0
9
 

S
e
s
s
io
n
 4
 I
n
q
u
ir
y
 i
n
to
 S
k
ill
s
 

T
h
e
 p
u
rp
o
s
e
 o
f 
th
is
 s
e
s
s
io
n
 i
s
 t
o
 

lo
o
k
 a
t 
h
o
w
 a
re
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 w
h
o
 h
a
v
e
 

s
ig
n
e
d
 u
p
  
to
 t
h
e
 L
A
A
 a
re
 d
e
liv
e
ri
n
g
 

o
n
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 t
h
a
t 
h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 s
e
t 

a
n
d
 t
o
 h
e
a
r 
a
b
o
u
t 
 t
h
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
h
e
y
 

a
re
 m
a
k
in
g
 i
n
 o
rd
e
r 
th
a
t 
th
e
y
 c
a
n
 

m
e
e
t 
th
o
s
e
 t
a
rg
e
ts
. 
It
 w
ill
 a
ls
o
 

e
x
p
lo
re
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
 w
h
o
 a
re
 p
o
s
t 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
w
h
o
 h
a
v
e
 n
o
 q
u
a
lif
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
/ 

n
o
 l
e
v
e
l 
1
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 e
x
te
n
t 
to
 w
h
ic
h
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
re
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
. 
 

 

T
h
e
 B
o
a
rd
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 t
e
rm

s
 o
f 

re
fe
re
n
c
e
 f
o
r 
th
is
 i
n
q
u
ir
y
 a
t 
it
s
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 i
n
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
fo
llo
w
in
g
 a
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 S
k
ill
s
 

W
o
rk
in
g
 g
ro
u
p
 i
t 
e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 e
a
rl
ie
r 

in
 t
h
e
 y
e
a
r 

R
P
/D
P
 

M
a
rk
e
ti
n
g
 L
e
e
d
s
 

 
T
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
a
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 r
e
p
o
rt
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 C
h
ie
f 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 M
a
rk
e
ti
n
g
 L
e
e
d
s
 

w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 t
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 o
f 

fu
n
d
in
g
 a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
, 
d
e
ta
ils
 o
f 
it
s
 

w
o
rk
 p
la
n
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
fo
r 
2
0
0
9
/1
0
 

  

T
h
is
 f
o
llo
w
s
 a
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

fr
o
m
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
 (
C
e
n
tr
a
l 
a
n
d
 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 F
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
) 
o
f 
1
7
th
 O
c
to
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 a
 C
a
ll-
In
 w
h
ic
h
 

in
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te
d
 w
h
e
th
e
r 
th
e
 k
e
y
 a
im
s
 o
f 

th
e
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 M
a
rk
e
ti
n
g
 L
e
e
d
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
, 

a
n
d
 w
ill
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 b
e
, 
a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 

 

R
P
/D
P
 

Page 29



S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 B
O
A
R
D
 (
C
IT
Y
 &
 R
E
G
IO
N
A
L
 P
A
R
T
N
E
R
S
H
IP
S
) 
O
U
T
L
IN
E
 W

O
R
K
 P
R
O
G
R
A
M
M
E
 (
D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r)
 2
0
0
8
  
A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 1
 

K
e
y
: 
 

C
C
F
A
 /
 R
F
S
 –
 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 c
a
ll 
fo
r 
a
c
ti
o
n
 /
 r
e
q
u
e
s
t 
fo
r 
s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

R
P
 –
  
R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
e
x
is
ti
n
g
 p
o
lic
y
 

D
P
 –
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
n
e
w
 p
o
lic
y
 

M
S
R
 –
 M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

P
M
 –
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

B
 –
 B
ri
e
fi
n
g
s
 (
In
c
lu
d
in
g
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
a
re
a
s
 f
o
r 
s
c
ru
ti
n
y
) 

S
C
 –
 S
ta
tu
to
ry
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

C
I 
–
 C
a
ll 
in
 

It
e
m
 

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 

N
o
te
s
 

T
y
p
e
 o
f 

it
e
m
 

 
M
e
e
ti
n
g
 d
a
te
 –
  
2
6
th
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 f
o
r 
re
c
e
ip
t 
o
f 
R
e
p
o
rt
s
  
6
th
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 

S
e
s
s
io
n
 5
 I
n
q
u
ir
y
 i
n
to
 S
k
ill
s
 

T
h
e
 p
u
rp
o
s
e
 o
f 
th
is
 s
e
s
s
io
n
 i
s
 t
o
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 h
e
a
ri
n
g
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 

p
a
rt
ie
s
 s
ig
n
e
d
 u
p
 t
o
 t
h
e
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 i
n
 

th
e
 L
S
P
 a
n
d
 a
n
y
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

re
q
u
e
s
te
d
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 p
re
v
io
u
s
 s
e
s
s
io
n
. 
 

 

T
h
e
 B
o
a
rd
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 t
e
rm

s
 o
f 

re
fe
re
n
c
e
 f
o
r 
th
is
 i
n
q
u
ir
y
 a
t 
it
s
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 i
n
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
fo
llo
w
in
g
 a
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 S
k
ill
s
 

W
o
rk
in
g
 g
ro
u
p
 i
t 
e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 e
a
rl
ie
r 

in
 t
h
e
 y
e
a
r 

R
P
/D
P
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 d
a
te
 –
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
9
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 f
o
r 
re
c
e
ip
t 
o
f 
R
e
p
o
rt
s
  
9
th
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
9
 

 S
e
s
s
io
n
 6
  
In
q
u
ir
y
 i
n
to
 S
k
ill
s
 

  

 T
h
e
 p
u
rp
o
s
e
 o
f 
th
is
 S
e
s
s
io
n
 i
s
 t
o
 

c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 B
o
a
rd
’s
 d
ra
ft
 i
n
q
u
ir
y
 

re
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

  

T
h
e
 B
o
a
rd
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 t
e
rm

s
 o
f 

re
fe
re
n
c
e
 f
o
r 
th
is
 i
n
q
u
ir
y
 a
t 
it
s
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 i
n
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
fo
llo
w
in
g
 a
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 S
k
ill
s
 

W
o
rk
in
g
 g
ro
u
p
 i
t 
e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 e
a
rl
ie
r 

in
 t
h
e
 y
e
a
r 

R
P
/D
P
 

 A
n
n
u
a
l 
R
e
p
o
rt
 

 T
o
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 B
o
a
rd
’s
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 

to
 t
h
e
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
s
 A
n
n
u
a
l 
R
e
p
o
rt
 

2
0
0
8
/0
9
. 

       

 
 

Page 30



S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 B
O
A
R
D
 (
C
IT
Y
 &
 R
E
G
IO
N
A
L
 P
A
R
T
N
E
R
S
H
IP
S
) 
O
U
T
L
IN
E
 W

O
R
K
 P
R
O
G
R
A
M
M
E
 (
D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r)
 2
0
0
8
  
A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 1
 

K
e
y
: 
 

C
C
F
A
 /
 R
F
S
 –
 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 c
a
ll 
fo
r 
a
c
ti
o
n
 /
 r
e
q
u
e
s
t 
fo
r 
s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

R
P
 –
  
R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
e
x
is
ti
n
g
 p
o
lic
y
 

D
P
 –
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
n
e
w
 p
o
lic
y
 

M
S
R
 –
 M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

P
M
 –
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

B
 –
 B
ri
e
fi
n
g
s
 (
In
c
lu
d
in
g
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
a
re
a
s
 f
o
r 
s
c
ru
ti
n
y
) 

S
C
 –
 S
ta
tu
to
ry
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

C
I 
–
 C
a
ll 
in
 

W
o
rk
in
g
 G
ro
u
p
s
 

W
o
rk
in
g
 g
ro
u
p
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
M
e
m
b
e
rs
h
ip
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
P
ro
g
re
s
s
 u
p
d
a
te
 

D
a
te
 l
a
s
t 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 

 

S
m
a
ll 
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
 B
e
n
tl
e
y
, 
A
th
a
, 
K
e
n
d
a
l 

In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 w
o
rk
in
g
 g
ro
u
p
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 h
e
ld
 o
n
 7

th
 O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 

w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 B
o
a
rd
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

2
3
rd
 O
c
to
b
e
r.
 

 

7
th
 O
c
to
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 

U
n
iv
e
rs
it
y
 F
e
e
s
 

 
C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
 B
e
n
tl
e
y
, 
K
e
n
d
a
l,
 J
 L
e
w
is
, 

A
th
a
 a
n
d
 Y
e
a
d
o
n
 

 

In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 w
o
rk
in
g
 g
ro
u
p
 

h
e
ld
 o
n
 t
h
e
 1
7
th
 O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
  
w
ill
 

b
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 B
o
a
rd
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 o
n
 

2
3
rd
 O
c
to
b
e
r.
 

 

1
7
th
 

O
c
to
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 

S
k
ill
s
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
 B
e
n
tl
e
y
, 
D
ri
v
e
r,
 Y
e
a
d
o
n
 

a
n
d
 J
 L
e
w
is
 

  

W
o
rk
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
. 
T
e
rm

s
 o
f 

R
e
fe
re
n
c
e
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 f
o
r 
a
n
 i
n
q
u
ir
y
 

b
y
 t
h
e
 B
o
a
rd
 o
n
 t
h
e
 2
5
th
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
. 

 

2
2
n
d
 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 

      

Page 31



S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 B
O
A
R
D
 (
C
IT
Y
 &
 R
E
G
IO
N
A
L
 P
A
R
T
N
E
R
S
H
IP
S
) 
O
U
T
L
IN
E
 W

O
R
K
 P
R
O
G
R
A
M
M
E
 (
D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r)
 2
0
0
8
  
A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 1
 

K
e
y
: 
 

C
C
F
A
 /
 R
F
S
 –
 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 c
a
ll 
fo
r 
a
c
ti
o
n
 /
 r
e
q
u
e
s
t 
fo
r 
s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

R
P
 –
  
R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
e
x
is
ti
n
g
 p
o
lic
y
 

D
P
 –
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
n
e
w
 p
o
lic
y
 

M
S
R
 –
 M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

P
M
 –
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

B
 –
 B
ri
e
fi
n
g
s
 (
In
c
lu
d
in
g
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
a
re
a
s
 f
o
r 
s
c
ru
ti
n
y
) 

S
C
 –
 S
ta
tu
to
ry
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

C
I 
–
 C
a
ll 
in
 

O
u
ts
ta
n
d
in
g
 I
s
s
u
e
s
 

 T
h
e
 T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 B
ill
 

T
h
e
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 L
o
c
a
l 
G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
Y
o
rk
s
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 H
u
m
b
e
r,
 G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
O
ff
ic
e
 f
o
r 
Y
o
rk
s
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

H
u
m
b
e
r,
 t
h
e
 R
D
A
s
, 
Y
o
rk
s
h
ir
e
 F
o
rw
a
rd
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 R
e
g
io
n
a
l 
M
in
is
te
r 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 A
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
t 
a
 r
e
g
io
n
a
l 
le
v
e
l 

 M
a
rk
e
ti
n
g
 L
e
e
d
s
  

 T
h
e
 C
h
a
ir
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
h
is
 t
o
 t
h
e
 B
o
a
rd
 o
n
 t
h
e
 2
3
rd
 O
c
to
b
e
r 
th
a
t 
s
h
e
 h
a
d
 m
e
t 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 C
h
ie
f 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
, 
M
a
rk
e
ti
n
g
 

L
e
e
d
s
, 
D
e
b
o
ra
h
 G
re
e
n
 o
n
 t
h
e
 2
0
th
 O
c
to
b
e
r 
a
n
d
 a
g
re
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
s
h
e
 w
o
u
ld
 b
ri
n
g
 a
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 r
e
p
o
rt
 t
o
 t
h
is
 B
o
a
rd
 i
n
 

F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
0
9
 w
h
ic
h
 w
o
u
ld
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 t
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 o
f 
fu
n
d
in
g
 a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
, 
d
e
ta
ils
 o
f 
it
s
 w
o
rk
 p
la
n
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
fo
r 
2
0
0
9
/1
0
 

 (E
x
tr
a
c
t 
o
f 
m
in
u
te
 b
e
lo
w
 f
ro
m
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
 C
e
n
tr
a
l 
a
n
d
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 F
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
) 

 S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 B
O
A
R
D
 (
C
E
N
T
R
A
L
 A
N
D
 C
O
R
P
O
R
A
T
E
) 

W
E
D
N
E
S
D
A
Y
, 
1
7
T
H
 S
E
P
T
E
M
B
E
R
, 
2
0
0
8
 

 2
8
 R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
C
a
ll
e
d
-I
n
 D
e
c
is
io
n
 -
 G
ra
n
t 
A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
w
it
h
 M

a
rk
e
ti
n
g
 L
e
e
d
s
 2
0
0
8
/0
9
 

 

Page 32



S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 B
O
A
R
D
 (
C
IT
Y
 &
 R
E
G
IO
N
A
L
 P
A
R
T
N
E
R
S
H
IP
S
) 
O
U
T
L
IN
E
 W

O
R
K
 P
R
O
G
R
A
M
M
E
 (
D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r)
 2
0
0
8
  
A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 1
 

K
e
y
: 
 

C
C
F
A
 /
 R
F
S
 –
 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 c
a
ll 
fo
r 
a
c
ti
o
n
 /
 r
e
q
u
e
s
t 
fo
r 
s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

R
P
 –
  
R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
e
x
is
ti
n
g
 p
o
lic
y
 

D
P
 –
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
n
e
w
 p
o
lic
y
 

M
S
R
 –
 M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

P
M
 –
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

B
 –
 B
ri
e
fi
n
g
s
 (
In
c
lu
d
in
g
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
a
re
a
s
 f
o
r 
s
c
ru
ti
n
y
) 

S
C
 –
 S
ta
tu
to
ry
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

C
I 
–
 C
a
ll 
in
 

T
h
e
 H
e
a
d
 o
f 
S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 a
n
d
 M
e
m
b
e
r 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 a
 r
e
p
o
rt
, 
to
g
e
th
e
r 
w
it
h
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 
b
a
c
k
g
ro
u
n
d
 

p
a
p
e
rs
, 
re
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 a
n
 o
ff
ic
e
r 
d
e
le
g
a
te
d
 d
e
c
is
io
n
, 
D
3
4
2
2
7
 o
f 
th
e
 C
h
ie
f 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 a
s
 f
o
llo
w
s
: 

G
ra
n
t 
A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
to
 M
a
rk
e
ti
n
g
 L
e
e
d
s
 2
0
0
8
/0
9
 

 ‘I
n
 a
c
c
o
rd
a
n
c
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 a
g
re
e
d
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
fo
r 
2
0
0
8
-0
9
, 
a
 g
ra
n
t 
o
f 
£
4
0
0
,0
0
0
 i
s
 p
a
y
a
b
le
 t
o
 M
a
rk
e
ti
n
g
 

L
e
e
d
s
 L
im
it
e
d
 t
o
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 a
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 a
s
 d
e
ta
ile
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 a
tt
a
c
h
e
d
 g
ra
n
t 
a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t.
’ 

 T
h
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 h
a
d
 b
e
e
n
 c
a
lle
d
-i
n
 f
o
r 
re
v
ie
w
 b
y
 C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
 J
 L
e
w
is
, 
J
 D
o
w
s
o
n
, 
L
 M
u
lh
e
ri
n
, 
E
 N
a
s
h
 a
n
d
 L
 

Y
e
a
d
o
n
 o
n
 t
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 g
ro
u
n
d
s
:-
 

 ‘I
 w
o
u
ld
 l
ik
e
 t
h
e
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
 t
o
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te
 w
h
e
th
e
r 
th
e
 k
e
y
 a
im
s
 o
f 
th
e
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 

M
a
rk
e
ti
n
g
 L
e
e
d
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
, 
a
n
d
 w
ill
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 b
e
, 
a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
.’
 

 T
h
e
 B
o
a
rd
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 w
ri
tt
e
n
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
:-
 

• 
A
 c
o
p
y
 o
f 
th
e
 C
a
ll-
In
 r
e
q
u
e
s
t 
fo
rm

; 
a
n
d
 

• 
A
 c
o
p
y
 o
f 
th
e
 D
e
le
g
a
te
d
 D
e
c
is
io
n
 F
o
rm

 d
a
te
d
 1
8
th
 A
u
g
u
s
t,
 2
0
0
8
 o
f 
th
e
 C
h
ie
f 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
, 
to
g
e
th
e
r 
w
it
h
 a
 c
o
p
y
 

o
f 
th
e
 a
c
c
o
m
p
a
n
y
in
g
 r
e
p
o
rt
 o
n
 w
h
ic
h
 t
h
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 w
a
s
 b
a
s
e
d
. 

 T
h
e
 B
o
a
rd
 a
ls
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
:-
 

• 
M
a
rk
e
ti
n
g
 L
e
e
d
s
 –
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 P
la
n
 2
0
0
8
/0
9
; 

• 
M
a
rk
e
ti
n
g
 L
e
e
d
s
 –
 A
c
ti
v
it
y
 a
n
d
 E
v
e
n
ts
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 2
0
0
8
/0
9
; 
a
n
d
 

• 
M
a
rk
e
ti
n
g
 L
e
e
d
s
 –
 S
ta
tu
to
ry
 F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
ta
te
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 
th
e
 y
e
a
r 
e
n
d
e
d
 3
1
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
8
; 

Page 33



S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 B
O
A
R
D
 (
C
IT
Y
 &
 R
E
G
IO
N
A
L
 P
A
R
T
N
E
R
S
H
IP
S
) 
O
U
T
L
IN
E
 W

O
R
K
 P
R
O
G
R
A
M
M
E
 (
D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r)
 2
0
0
8
  
A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 1
 

K
e
y
: 
 

C
C
F
A
 /
 R
F
S
 –
 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 c
a
ll 
fo
r 
a
c
ti
o
n
 /
 r
e
q
u
e
s
t 
fo
r 
s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

R
P
 –
  
R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
e
x
is
ti
n
g
 p
o
lic
y
 

D
P
 –
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
n
e
w
 p
o
lic
y
 

M
S
R
 –
 M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

P
M
 –
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

B
 –
 B
ri
e
fi
n
g
s
 (
In
c
lu
d
in
g
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
a
re
a
s
 f
o
r 
s
c
ru
ti
n
y
) 

S
C
 –
 S
ta
tu
to
ry
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

C
I 
–
 C
a
ll 
in
 

 C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
 J
 L
e
w
is
 a
n
d
 L
 M
u
lh
e
ri
n
 a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
 t
h
e
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 t
o
 p
re
s
e
n
t 
e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 B
o
a
rd
. 
C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
J
 L
e
w
is
 

g
a
v
e
 a
 p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
u
tl
in
in
g
 t
h
e
 r
e
a
s
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 c
a
ll-
in
 r
e
q
u
e
s
t.
 

 T
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
 w
e
re
 a
ls
o
 i
n
 a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 t
o
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
 t
o
 M
e
m
b
e
rs
’ 
q
u
e
ri
e
s
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
:-
 

• 
P
a
u
l 
R
o
g
e
rs
o
n
, 
C
h
ie
f 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
; 

• 
J
a
m
e
s
 R
o
g
e
rs
, 
A
s
s
is
ta
n
t 
C
h
ie
f 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 (
P
la
n
n
in
g
, 
P
o
lic
y
 a
n
d
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t)
; 

• 
J
e
a
n
 D
e
n
t,
 D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
; 
a
n
d
 

• 
D
e
b
o
ra
h
 G
re
e
n
, 
C
h
ie
f 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 o
f 
M
a
rk
e
ti
n
g
 L
e
e
d
s
. 

T
h
e
 B
o
a
rd
 t
h
e
n
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
e
d
 O
ff
ic
e
rs
 a
t 
le
n
g
th
 o
n
 t
h
e
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 a
n
d
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 s
u
b
m
it
te
d
. 

 R
E
S
O
L
V
E
D
 –
 T
h
a
t 
th
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 a
p
p
e
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
 b
e
 n
o
te
d
. 

 2
9
 O
u
tc
o
m
e
 o
f 
C
a
ll-
In
 

 R
E
S
O
L
V
E
D
 –
 

(a
) 
T
o
 n
o
te
 t
h
e
 B
o
a
rd
’s
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
M
a
rk
e
ti
n
g
 L
e
e
d
s
; 

(b
) 
T
h
a
t 
th
e
 O
ff
ic
e
r 
D
e
le
g
a
te
d
 D
e
c
is
io
n
 D
3
4
2
2
7
 b
e
 i
m
m
e
d
ia
te
ly
 r
e
le
a
s
e
d
 f
o
r 
im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
; 

(c
) 
T
h
a
t 
th
e
 C
h
ie
f 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 b
a
c
k
 t
o
 t
h
e
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
 (
C
e
n
tr
a
l 
a
n
d
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
) 
a
t 
th
e
 O
c
to
b
e
r 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 p
a
ra
g
ra
p
h
s
 6
 (
O
b
lig
a
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
M
a
rk
e
ti
n
g
 L
e
e
d
s
) 
a
n
d
 8
 (
P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
) 
o
f 
th
e
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
b
e
tw
e
e
n
 L
e
e
d
s
 C
it
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 M
a
rk
e
ti
n
g
 L
e
e
d
s
; 

Page 34



S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 B
O
A
R
D
 (
C
IT
Y
 &
 R
E
G
IO
N
A
L
 P
A
R
T
N
E
R
S
H
IP
S
) 
O
U
T
L
IN
E
 W

O
R
K
 P
R
O
G
R
A
M
M
E
 (
D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r)
 2
0
0
8
  
A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 1
 

K
e
y
: 
 

C
C
F
A
 /
 R
F
S
 –
 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 c
a
ll 
fo
r 
a
c
ti
o
n
 /
 r
e
q
u
e
s
t 
fo
r 
s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

R
P
 –
  
R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
e
x
is
ti
n
g
 p
o
lic
y
 

D
P
 –
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
n
e
w
 p
o
lic
y
 

M
S
R
 –
 M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

P
M
 –
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

B
 –
 B
ri
e
fi
n
g
s
 (
In
c
lu
d
in
g
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
a
re
a
s
 f
o
r 
s
c
ru
ti
n
y
) 

S
C
 –
 S
ta
tu
to
ry
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

C
I 
–
 C
a
ll 
in
 

(d
) 
T
h
a
t 
th
e
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
 (
C
it
y
 a
n
d
 R
e
g
io
n
a
l 
P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
) 
c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
a
 b
ro
a
d
e
r 
in
q
u
ir
y
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 w
o
rk
 a
n
d
 

p
o
s
it
iv
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 o
f 
M
a
rk
e
ti
n
g
 L
e
e
d
s
; 
a
n
d
 

(e
) 
T
h
a
t 
th
e
 d
ra
ft
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
b
e
tw
e
e
n
 L
e
e
d
s
 C
it
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 M
a
rk
e
ti
n
g
 L
e
e
d
s
 f
o
r 
2
0
0
9
/1
0
 b
e
 b
ro
u
g
h
t 

b
e
fo
re
 t
h
e
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 
S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
 f
o
r 
c
o
m
m
e
n
t 
p
ri
o
r 
to
 a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t.
 

   

Page 35



Page 36

This page is intentionally left blank



 
LE

E
D

S
 C

IT
Y

 C
O

U
N

C
IL

 
 

FO
R

W
A

R
D

 P
LA

N
 O

F 
K

E
Y

 D
E

C
IS

IO
N

S
 

Fo
r t

he
 p

er
io

d 
1 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

8 
to

 3
1 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
9 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

pp
en

di
x 

2 
 

K
ey

 D
ec

is
io

ns
 

D
ec

is
io

n 
M

ak
er

 
E

xp
ec

te
d 

D
at

e 
of

 
D

ec
is

io
n 

P
ro

po
se

d 
 

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

D
oc

um
en

ts
 to

 b
e 

C
on

si
de

re
d 

by
 D

ec
is

io
n 

M
ak

er
 

Le
ad

 O
ff

ic
er

 
(T

o 
w

ho
m

 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 m

ad
e 

an
d 

em
ai

l 
ad

dr
es

s 
to

 s
en

d 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 to
) 

D
es

ig
n 

C
os

t R
ep

or
t -

 Y
ou

th
 

C
ap

ita
l F

un
d 

To
 g

iv
e 

au
th

or
ity

 to
 in

cu
r 

ex
pe

nd
itu

re
 o

f £
37

0,
10

0 
(fu

lly
 fu

nd
ed

 b
y 

D
C

S
F)

.  

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 

  

1/
12

/0
8 

P
an

el
 o

f y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
  

Y
ou

th
 M

at
te

rs
 

 
S

al
ly

 T
hr

el
fa

ll,
 H

ea
d 

of
 

E
ar

ly
 Y

ea
rs

 S
er

vi
ce

 
sa

lly
.th

re
lfa

ll@
le

ed
s.

go
v.

uk
 

 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

A
dv

ic
e 

an
d 

G
ui

da
nc

e 
C

on
tra

ct
 A

cc
ep

ta
nc

e 

C
hi

ef
 O

ffi
ce

r -
 E

ar
ly

 
Y

ea
rs

 a
nd

 Y
ou

th
 

S
er

vi
ce

 
  

1/
12

/0
8 

C
or

po
ra

te
 

P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t U
ni

t, 
Jo

in
t P

re
ve

nt
at

iv
e 

C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

P
an

el
, 

Jo
in

t P
re

ve
nt

at
iv

e 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

  

N
on

e.
 

 
D

ire
ct

or
 o

f C
hi

ld
re

n'
s 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
  

Page 37



 
K

ey
 D

ec
is

io
ns

 
D

ec
is

io
n 

M
ak

er
 

E
xp

ec
te

d 
D

at
e 

of
 

D
ec

is
io

n 

P
ro

po
se

d 
 

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

D
oc

um
en

ts
 to

 b
e 

C
on

si
de

re
d 

by
 D

ec
is

io
n 

M
ak

er
 

Le
ad

 O
ff

ic
er

 
(T

o 
w

ho
m

 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 m

ad
e 

an
d 

em
ai

l 
ad

dr
es

s 
to

 s
en

d 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 to
) 

Tr
an

sf
or

m
in

g 
S

oc
ia

l C
ar

e 
In

 re
sp

on
se

 to
 th

e 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t a
ge

nd
a 

“T
ra

ns
fo

rm
in

g 
S

oc
ia

l C
ar

e”
 

(D
oH

 L
A

 C
irc

ul
ar

 (D
H

) 
(2

00
8)

1)
 th

er
e 

w
ill

 n
ee

d 
to

 
be

 a
 v

ar
ie

ty
 o

f c
ha

ng
es

 to
 

st
af

fin
g 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 
pr

ed
om

in
an

tly
 w

ith
in

 A
du

lt 
S

oc
ia

l C
ar

e.
  

 A
t t

hi
s 

st
ag

e 
it 

is
 n

ot
 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 w

ha
t t

he
se

 a
re

 
bu

t a
s 

ac
tio

n 
pl

an
s 

ar
e 

pr
og

re
ss

ed
 it

 is
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

th
at

 th
er

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
a 

ra
ng

e 
of

 
ch

an
ge

s 
to

 re
so

ur
ci

ng
 to

 
en

su
re

 a
ch

ie
ve

m
en

t o
f 

ta
rg

et
s.

 T
he

re
 w

ill
 b

e 
a 

se
rie

s 
of

 re
po

rts
 a

s 
th

is
 is

 
de

ve
lo

pe
d.

 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f A

du
lt 

S
oc

ia
l S

er
vi

ce
s,

 
C

hi
ef

 O
ffi

ce
r (

H
R

) 
  

1/
12

/0
8 

A
s 

a 
m

in
im

um
 th

e 
E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

B
oa

rd
 

m
em

be
r, 

S
ta

ff 
an

d 
Tr

ad
e 

U
ni

on
s.

 
H

ow
ev

er
 a

 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
pl

an
 w

ill
 

be
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 to
 

en
su

re
 a

ll 
st

ak
eh

ol
de

rs
 a

re
 

co
ns

ul
te

d 
an

d 
in

fo
rm

ed
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
ly

.  
  

Lo
ca

l G
ov

er
nm

en
t C

irc
ul

ar
 

LA
C

 (D
H

) (
20

08
) 

 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f A

du
lt 

S
oc

ia
l 

S
er

vi
ce

s,
 D

ire
ct

or
 o

f 
R

es
ou

rc
es

 
  

Page 38



 
K

ey
 D

ec
is

io
ns

 
D

ec
is

io
n 

M
ak

er
 

E
xp

ec
te

d 
D

at
e 

of
 

D
ec

is
io

n 

P
ro

po
se

d 
 

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

D
oc

um
en

ts
 to

 b
e 

C
on

si
de

re
d 

by
 D

ec
is

io
n 

M
ak

er
 

Le
ad

 O
ff

ic
er

 
(T

o 
w

ho
m

 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 m

ad
e 

an
d 

em
ai

l 
ad

dr
es

s 
to

 s
en

d 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 to
) 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 a
nd

 re
pa

irs
 to

 
Le

ed
s 

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il's

 s
ite

 
ex

cl
ud

in
g 

H
ou

si
ng

 S
to

ck
 in

 
th

e 
tra

de
s 

of
 p

ai
nt

in
g 

an
d 

de
co

ra
tin

g;
 d

ra
in

ag
e 

/ d
ra

in
 

cl
ea

ra
nc

e;
 g

ut
te

r c
le

an
in

g;
 

gl
az

in
g;

 li
gh

tn
in

g 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n;

 m
et

al
w

or
k,

 
ro

of
in

g 
an

d 
ta

rm
ac

da
m

 / 
gr

ou
nd

w
or

ks
 

A
w

ar
d 

of
 C

on
tra

ct
s 

C
hi

ef
 O

ffi
ce

r, 
C

or
po

ra
te

 P
ro

pe
rty

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
  

1/
12

/0
8 

C
lie

nt
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

ts
 

  

C
on

tra
ct

 A
w

ar
d 

R
ep

or
t 

 
C

hi
ef

 O
ffi

ce
r, 

C
or

po
ra

te
 P

ro
pe

rty
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

  

R
eq

ue
st

 to
 w

ai
ve

 c
on

tra
ct

 
pr

oc
ed

ur
e 

ru
le

 1
2 

an
d 

en
te

r i
nt

o 
a 

S
up

po
rti

ng
 

P
eo

pl
e 

co
nt

ra
ct

 w
ith

 
S

to
nh

am
 D

iv
is

io
n 

of
 H

om
e 

G
ro

up
 L

td
. 

A
ut

ho
ris

at
io

n 
to

 w
ai

ve
 

co
nt

ra
ct

 p
ro

ce
du

re
 ru

le
 1

2 
an

d 
en

te
r i

nt
o 

a 
S

up
po

rti
ng

 
P

eo
pl

e 
co

nt
ra

ct
 w

ith
 

S
to

nh
am

 D
iv

is
io

n 
of

 H
om

e 
G

ro
up

 L
td

. f
or

 th
e 

Le
ed

s 
P

re
ve

nt
io

n 
S

er
vi

ce
, 

K
irk

st
al

l L
od

ge
 a

nd
 S

ou
th

 
Le

ed
s 

Te
na

nc
y 

S
us

ta
in

m
en

t s
er

vi
ce

s.
  

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
t a

nd
 

N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
s 

  

1/
12

/0
8 

N
/A

 
  

R
ep

or
t t

o 
be

 p
re

se
nt

ed
 to

 
th

e 
D

el
eg

at
ed

 D
ec

is
io

n 
P

an
el

 
 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
t a

nd
 

N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
s 

  

Page 39



 
K

ey
 D

ec
is

io
ns

 
D

ec
is

io
n 

M
ak

er
 

E
xp

ec
te

d 
D

at
e 

of
 

D
ec

is
io

n 

P
ro

po
se

d 
 

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

D
oc

um
en

ts
 to

 b
e 

C
on

si
de

re
d 

by
 D

ec
is

io
n 

M
ak

er
 

Le
ad

 O
ff

ic
er

 
(T

o 
w

ho
m

 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 m

ad
e 

an
d 

em
ai

l 
ad

dr
es

s 
to

 s
en

d 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 to
) 

R
eq

ue
st

 to
 e

nt
er

 in
to

 a
 

co
nt

ra
ct

 w
ith

 C
ar

r G
om

m
 

fo
r t

he
 P

ro
vi

si
on

 o
f 

S
up

po
rti

ng
 P

eo
pl

e 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

fo
r h

om
el

es
s 

fa
m

ili
es

 a
nd

 w
om

en
 

ex
pe

rie
nc

in
g 

do
m

es
tic

 
vi

ol
en

ce
 (L

ee
ds

 F
lo

at
in

g 
S

up
po

rt 
fo

r F
am

ili
es

, S
ID

 
10

31
) 

A
pp

ro
va

l t
o 

en
te

r i
nt

o 
S

up
po

rti
ng

 P
eo

pl
e 

co
nt

ra
ct

 
w

ith
 C

ar
r G

om
m

 fo
r a

 
pe

rio
d 

of
 3

 (1
+1

) y
ea

rs
. 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
t a

nd
 

N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
s 

  

1/
12

/0
8 

N
/A

 
  

R
ep

or
t a

nd
 O

pt
io

ns
 

A
pp

ra
is

al
 fo

r t
he

 D
el

eg
at

ed
 

D
ec

is
io

n 
P

an
el

 
 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
t a

nd
 

N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
s 

  

R
eq

ue
st

 to
 e

nt
er

 in
to

 a
 

S
er

vi
ce

 L
ev

el
 A

gr
ee

m
en

t 
w

ith
 A

du
lt 

S
oc

ia
l C

ar
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

P
ro

vi
si

on
 o

f S
up

po
rti

ng
 

P
eo

pl
e 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
fo

r P
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 L
ea

rn
in

g 
D

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
A

pp
ro

va
l t

o 
en

te
r i

nt
o 

S
up

po
rti

ng
 P

eo
pl

e 
S

er
vi

ce
 

Le
ve

l A
gr

ee
m

en
t w

ith
 

Le
ed

s 
C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il,
 A

du
lt 

S
oc

ia
l C

ar
e 

D
ire

ct
or

at
e 

fo
r 

a 
pe

rio
d 

of
 3

 +
 1

 y
ea

rs
. 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
t a

nd
 

N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
s 

  

1/
12

/0
8 

N
/A

 
  

R
ep

or
t a

nd
 O

pt
io

ns
 

A
pp

ra
is

al
 fo

r t
he

 D
el

eg
at

ed
 

D
ec

is
io

n 
P

an
el

 
 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
t a

nd
 

N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
s 

  

Page 40



 
K

ey
 D

ec
is

io
ns

 
D

ec
is

io
n 

M
ak

er
 

E
xp

ec
te

d 
D

at
e 

of
 

D
ec

is
io

n 

P
ro

po
se

d 
 

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

D
oc

um
en

ts
 to

 b
e 

C
on

si
de

re
d 

by
 D

ec
is

io
n 

M
ak

er
 

Le
ad

 O
ff

ic
er

 
(T

o 
w

ho
m

 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 m

ad
e 

an
d 

em
ai

l 
ad

dr
es

s 
to

 s
en

d 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 to
) 

R
eq

ue
st

 fo
r a

pp
ro

va
l t

o 
en

te
r i

nt
o 

a 
S

up
po

rti
ng

 
P

eo
pl

e 
S

LA
 fo

r s
er

vi
ce

s 
fo

r 
pe

op
le

 w
ith

 m
en

ta
l h

ea
lth

 
pr

ob
le

m
s 

A
pp

ro
va

l t
o 

en
te

r i
nt

o 
a 

S
up

po
rti

ng
 P

eo
pl

e 
S

er
vi

ce
 

Le
ve

l A
gr

ee
m

en
t w

ith
 

Le
ed

s 
C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il 
fo

r t
he

ir 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n 
ba

se
d 

se
rv

ic
es

 fo
r p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 

m
en

ta
l h

ea
lth

 p
ro

bl
em

s 
– 

C
ot

tli
ng

le
y 

C
ou

rt,
 S

pe
n 

C
ro

ft 
an

d 
B

ew
er

le
y 

C
ro

ft 
S

er
vi

ce
s.

 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
t a

nd
 

N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
s 

  

1/
12

/0
8 

N
/A

 
  

R
ep

or
t t

o 
be

 p
re

se
nt

ed
 to

 
th

e 
D

el
eg

at
ed

 D
ec

is
io

n 
P

an
el

 
 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
t a

nd
 

N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
s 

  

R
eq

ue
st

 to
 e

nt
er

 in
to

 a
 

S
er

vi
ce

 L
ev

el
 A

gr
ee

m
en

t 
w

ith
 A

du
lt 

S
oc

ia
l C

ar
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

P
ro

vi
si

on
 o

f S
up

po
rti

ng
 

P
eo

pl
e 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
fo

r P
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 L
ea

rn
in

g 
D

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
A

pp
ro

va
l t

o 
en

te
r i

nt
o 

S
up

po
rti

ng
 P

eo
pl

e 
S

er
vi

ce
 

Le
ve

l A
gr

ee
m

en
t w

ith
 

Le
ed

s 
C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il,
 A

du
lt 

S
oc

ia
l C

ar
e 

D
ire

ct
or

at
e 

fo
r 

a 
pe

rio
d 

of
 1

8+
6 

m
on

th
s.

 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
t a

nd
 

N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
s 

  

1/
12

/0
8 

N
/A

 
  

R
ep

or
t a

nd
 O

pt
io

ns
 

A
pp

ra
is

al
 fo

r t
he

 D
el

eg
at

ed
 

D
ec

is
io

n 
P

an
el

 
 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
t a

nd
 

N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
s 

  

Page 41



 
K

ey
 D

ec
is

io
ns

 
D

ec
is

io
n 

M
ak

er
 

E
xp

ec
te

d 
D

at
e 

of
 

D
ec

is
io

n 

P
ro

po
se

d 
 

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

D
oc

um
en

ts
 to

 b
e 

C
on

si
de

re
d 

by
 D

ec
is

io
n 

M
ak

er
 

Le
ad

 O
ff

ic
er

 
(T

o 
w

ho
m

 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 m

ad
e 

an
d 

em
ai

l 
ad

dr
es

s 
to

 s
en

d 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 to
) 

G
ro

un
ds

 M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 - 
A

TM
 L

td
 - 

E
xt

en
si

on
 o

f 
co

nt
ra

ct
 to

 y
ea

r 2
 

P
er

m
is

si
on

 to
 e

xt
en

d 
co

nt
ra

ct
 to

 c
ov

er
 y

ea
r 2

 
fro

m
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

9 
to

 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 2

01
0 

C
hi

ef
 O

ffi
ce

r 
E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
  

1/
12

/0
8 

A
lre

ad
y 

un
de

rta
ke

n 
  

R
ep

or
t a

pp
ro

ve
d 

by
 

G
ro

un
ds

 M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 
B

oa
rd

 o
n 

30
th

 J
ul

y 
20

08
 a

t 
w

hi
ch

 a
ll 

cl
ie

nt
 d

ep
ar

tm
en

ts
 

re
pr

es
en

te
d.

 
 

C
hi

ef
 O

ffi
ce

r 
E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
st

ep
he

n.
sm

ith
@

le
ed

s.
go

v.
uk

 
 

W
rit

e 
O

ff 
of

 F
or

m
er

 
Te

na
nt

s 
re

nt
 a

rr
ea

rs
 

To
 w

rit
e 

of
f f

or
m

er
 te

na
nt

 
re

nt
 a

rr
ea

rs
 o

n 
55

0 
ac

co
un

ts
 w

ith
 a

 v
al

ue
 o

f 
£3

90
,5

00
 in

 th
e 

W
es

t N
or

th
 

W
es

t A
LM

O
 

C
hi

ef
 H

ou
si

ng
 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
O

ffi
ce

r 
  

1/
12

/0
8 

   

D
ec

is
io

n 
P

an
el

 R
ep

or
t 

 
C

hi
ef

 H
ou

si
ng

 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

O
ffi

ce
r 

m
ic

ha
el

.c
ra

gg
s@

le
ed

s
.g

ov
.u

k 
 

Page 42



 
K

ey
 D

ec
is

io
ns

 
D

ec
is

io
n 

M
ak

er
 

E
xp

ec
te

d 
D

at
e 

of
 

D
ec

is
io

n 

P
ro

po
se

d 
 

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

D
oc

um
en

ts
 to

 b
e 

C
on

si
de

re
d 

by
 D

ec
is

io
n 

M
ak

er
 

Le
ad

 O
ff

ic
er

 
(T

o 
w

ho
m

 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 m

ad
e 

an
d 

em
ai

l 
ad

dr
es

s 
to

 s
en

d 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 to
) 

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f A

du
lt 

S
oc

ia
l 

C
ar

e 
S

en
io

r M
an

ag
em

en
t 

A
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 

To
 c

re
at

e 
he

ad
 o

f s
er

vi
ce

 
po

st
s,

 A
cc

es
s 

an
d 

In
cl

us
io

n,
 a

nd
, S

up
po

rt 
an

d 
en

ab
le

m
en

t, 
ta

ki
ng

 in
to

 
ac

co
un

t 
•
 

tra
ns

fo
rm

at
io

n 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 

•
 

re
qu

ire
m

en
t 

to
 

en
ha

nc
e 

le
ad

er
sh

ip
 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 
•
 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

in
 

sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 
an

d 
qu

al
ity

 
w

hi
ls

t m
ai

nt
ai

ni
ng

 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 in

 fi
na

nc
ia

l 
an

d 
se

rv
ic

e 
de

liv
er

y 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

. 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f A

du
lt 

S
oc

ia
l S

er
vi

ce
s 

  

1/
12

/0
8 

A
s 

a 
m

in
im

um
 th

e 
E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

B
oa

rd
 

M
em

be
r, 

S
ta

ff 
an

d 
TU

’s
. 

  

A
tta

ch
ed

 is
 th

e 
Lo

ca
l 

G
ov

er
nm

en
t C

irc
ul

ar
 L

A
C

 
(D

H
) (

20
08

) 1
 fo

r 
ba

ck
gr

ou
nd

. 
 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f A

du
lt 

S
oc

ia
l 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
lo

rr
ai

ne
.h

al
la

m
@

le
ed

s.
go

v.
uk

 
 

Page 43



 
K

ey
 D

ec
is

io
ns

 
D

ec
is

io
n 

M
ak

er
 

E
xp

ec
te

d 
D

at
e 

of
 

D
ec

is
io

n 

P
ro

po
se

d 
 

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

D
oc

um
en

ts
 to

 b
e 

C
on

si
de

re
d 

by
 D

ec
is

io
n 

M
ak

er
 

Le
ad

 O
ff

ic
er

 
(T

o 
w

ho
m

 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 m

ad
e 

an
d 

em
ai

l 
ad

dr
es

s 
to

 s
en

d 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 to
) 

U
rb

an
 T

ra
ffi

c 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
C

on
tro

l C
om

pu
te

r 
E

nh
an

ce
m

en
ts

 P
ha

se
 3

 
A

ut
ho

ris
at

io
n 

to
 c

ar
ry

 o
ut

 
th

e 
ne

xt
 p

ha
se

 o
f 

en
ha

nc
em

en
t f

or
 th

e 
Le

ed
s 

U
TM

C
 c

om
pu

te
r, 

to
 

co
nt

in
ue

 th
e 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 
in

 th
e 

ce
nt

ra
l c

on
tro

l o
f 

tra
ffi

c 
si

gn
al

s 
an

d 
us

e 
of

 
tra

ve
l i

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

in
 

ta
ck

lin
g 

co
ng

es
tio

n.
 

C
hi

ef
 H

ig
hw

ay
s 

O
ffi

ce
r 

  

1/
12

/0
8 

N
/A

 
  

R
ep

or
t t

o 
go

 to
 H

ig
hw

ay
s 

B
oa

rd
 

 

C
hi

ef
 H

ig
hw

ay
s 

O
ffi

ce
r 

go
rd

on
.ro

be
rts

on
@

le
e

ds
.g

ov
.u

k 
 

Page 44



 
K

ey
 D

ec
is

io
ns

 
D

ec
is

io
n 

M
ak

er
 

E
xp

ec
te

d 
D

at
e 

of
 

D
ec

is
io

n 

P
ro

po
se

d 
 

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

D
oc

um
en

ts
 to

 b
e 

C
on

si
de

re
d 

by
 D

ec
is

io
n 

M
ak

er
 

Le
ad

 O
ff

ic
er

 
(T

o 
w

ho
m

 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 m

ad
e 

an
d 

em
ai

l 
ad

dr
es

s 
to

 s
en

d 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 to
) 

R
es

tru
ct

ur
e 

of
 P

ro
pe

rty
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t S

er
vi

ce
s 

(E
nv

iro
nm

en
ts

 a
nd

 
N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

s)
 

To
 a

pp
ro

ve
 n

ew
 s

tru
ct

ur
e 

pr
op

os
al

s 
fo

r t
he

 P
ro

pe
rty

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t S
er

vi
ce

, i
n 

lin
e 

w
ith

 re
ce

nt
 c

ha
ng

es
 to

 
co

nt
ra

ct
ua

l a
nd

 fu
nd

in
g 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

. 

C
hi

ef
 O

ffi
ce

r (
H

R
) 

  

1/
12

/0
8 

S
ta

ff 
an

d 
TU

 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
st

ar
te

d 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 0
8 

(in
fo

rm
al

). 
Fo

rm
al

 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
pe

rio
d 

w
ill

 
co

m
m

en
ce

 o
n 

pr
od

uc
tio

n 
of

 
D

el
eg

at
ed

 D
ec

is
io

n 
re

po
rt 

(a
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 e
nd

 
O

ct
ob

er
). 

M
an

ag
em

en
t w

ill
 

co
nt

in
ue

 to
 w

or
k 

w
ith

 
TU

s 
du

rin
g 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
pr

op
os

al
s.

 T
he

 s
er

vi
ce

 
w

ill
 a

ls
o 

lia
se

 w
ith

 k
ey

 
m

em
be

rs
 a

s 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

. 
  

D
el

eg
at

ed
 D

ec
is

io
n 

P
an

el
 

R
ep

or
t 

 

C
hi

ef
 O

ffi
ce

r (
H

R
) 

ne
il.

ev
an

s@
le

ed
s.

go
v.

uk
 

 

Page 45



 
K

ey
 D

ec
is

io
ns

 
D

ec
is

io
n 

M
ak

er
 

E
xp

ec
te

d 
D

at
e 

of
 

D
ec

is
io

n 

P
ro

po
se

d 
 

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

D
oc

um
en

ts
 to

 b
e 

C
on

si
de

re
d 

by
 D

ec
is

io
n 

M
ak

er
 

Le
ad

 O
ff

ic
er

 
(T

o 
w

ho
m

 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 m

ad
e 

an
d 

em
ai

l 
ad

dr
es

s 
to

 s
en

d 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 to
) 

C
hi

ld
re

n'
s 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
Tr

an
sp

or
t P

ol
ic

y 
A

pp
ro

va
l t

o 
co

ns
ul

t o
n 

ch
an

ge
s 

to
 tw

o 
ar

ea
s 

of
 

sp
en

di
ng

, w
hi

ch
 re

m
ai

n 
di

sc
re

tio
na

ry
, w

ith
in

 th
e 

pr
es

en
t H

om
e 

to
 

S
ch

oo
l/C

ol
le

ge
 tr

an
sp

or
t 

po
lic

y.
 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
B

oa
rd

 
(P

or
tfo

lio
: C

hi
ld

re
ns

 
S

er
vi

ce
s)

 
 

3/
12

/0
8 

P
er

io
d 

of
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
w

ith
 s

ta
ke

ho
ld

er
s 

ov
er

 
th

e 
sp

rin
g 

te
rm

. 
  

Th
e 

re
po

rt 
to

 b
e 

is
su

ed
 to

 
th

e 
de

ci
si

on
 m

ak
er

 w
ith

 th
e 

ag
en

da
 fo

r t
he

 m
ee

tin
g 

 

C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

of
 

E
du

ca
tio

n 
Le

ed
s 

vi
vi

en
ne

.b
uc

kl
an

d@
le

e
ds

.g
ov

.u
k 

 

Page 46



 
K

ey
 D

ec
is

io
ns

 
D

ec
is

io
n 

M
ak

er
 

E
xp

ec
te

d 
D

at
e 

of
 

D
ec

is
io

n 

P
ro

po
se

d 
 

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

D
oc

um
en

ts
 to

 b
e 

C
on

si
de

re
d 

by
 D

ec
is

io
n 

M
ak

er
 

Le
ad

 O
ff

ic
er

 
(T

o 
w

ho
m

 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 m

ad
e 

an
d 

em
ai

l 
ad

dr
es

s 
to

 s
en

d 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 to
) 

C
or

po
ra

te
 R

ec
or

ds
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t F

ac
fil

ity
  a

t 
W

es
tla

nd
 R

oa
d.

 
A

pp
ro

va
l o

f r
el

ea
se

 o
f 

£7
45

,4
00

 fr
om

 th
e 

S
tra

te
gi

c 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

Fu
nd

 to
 e

na
bl

e 
co

nv
er

si
on

 
of

 th
e 

se
le

ct
ed

 W
es

tla
nd

 
R

oa
d 

S
ite

 in
to

 a
 b

es
po

ke
 

re
co

rd
s 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

fa
ci

lit
y.

 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
B

oa
rd

 
(P

or
tfo

lio
 : 

C
en

tra
l 

an
d 

C
or

po
ra

te
) 

 

3/
12

/0
8 

Th
e 

bu
si

ne
ss

 c
as

e 
in

 
th

e 
ap

pe
nd

ix
 o

f t
hi

s 
re

po
rt 

ha
s 

be
en

 
co

ns
ul

te
d 

up
on

 w
id

el
y 

ac
ro

ss
 th

e 
au

th
or

ity
, 

an
d 

ha
s 

ga
in

ed
 

ap
pr

ov
al

 fr
om

 A
ss

et
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t G

ro
up

, 
an

d 
fro

m
 C

or
po

ra
te

 
Le

ad
er

sh
ip

 T
ea

m
. 

P
le

as
e 

se
e 

do
cu

m
en

t 
co

nt
ro

l s
he

et
 fo

r f
ul

l 
de

ta
ils

. T
he

 D
es

ig
n 

an
d 

C
os

t r
ep

or
t h

ad
 

be
en

 c
on

su
lte

d 
on

 b
y 

th
e 

P
ro

je
ct

 M
an

ag
er

 
(D

oc
um

en
t a

nd
 

R
ec

or
ds

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t),
 P

ro
je

ct
 

M
an

ag
er

 fo
r t

he
 

W
es

tla
nd

 R
oa

d 
pr

oj
ec

t 
its

el
f, 

P
ro

je
ct

 O
ffi

ce
r 

(D
oc

um
en

t a
nd

 
R

ec
or

ds
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t),

 a
nd

 
co

lle
ag

ue
s 

in
 th

e 
S

tra
te

gi
c 

D
es

ig
n 

A
lli

an
ce

, a
nd

 w
ith

in
 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l 
M

an
ag

em
en

t. 
  

  

Th
e 

re
po

rt 
to

 b
e 

is
su

ed
 to

 
th

e 
de

ci
si

on
 m

ak
er

 w
ith

 th
e 

ag
en

da
 fo

r t
he

 m
ee

tin
g.

 
 

Ja
m

es
 R

og
er

s,
 

A
ss

is
ta

nt
 C

hi
ef

 
E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

(P
la

nn
in

g,
 

P
ol

ic
y 

an
d 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t) 

ja
m

es
.ro

ge
rs

@
le

ed
s.

g
ov

.u
k 

 

Page 47



 
K

ey
 D

ec
is

io
ns

 
D

ec
is

io
n 

M
ak

er
 

E
xp

ec
te

d 
D

at
e 

of
 

D
ec

is
io

n 

P
ro

po
se

d 
 

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

D
oc

um
en

ts
 to

 b
e 

C
on

si
de

re
d 

by
 D

ec
is

io
n 

M
ak

er
 

Le
ad

 O
ff

ic
er

 
(T

o 
w

ho
m

 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 m

ad
e 

an
d 

em
ai

l 
ad

dr
es

s 
to

 s
en

d 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 to
) 

Le
ed

s 
B

ui
ld

in
g 

S
ch

oo
ls

 fo
r 

th
e 

Fu
tu

re
: F

ol
lo

w
 o

n 
P

ro
je

ct
 a

nd
 E

xp
re

ss
io

n 
of

 
In

te
re

st
 

A
pp

ro
va

l; 
of

 th
e 

pr
io

rit
ie

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
E

xp
re

ss
io

n 
of

 In
te

re
st

 a
nd

 
ag

re
e 

th
at

 fu
rth

er
 w

or
k 

ne
ed

s 
to

 b
e 

un
de

rta
ke

n 
to

 
de

ta
il 

th
e 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

pr
og

ra
m

m
es

 in
 a

ll 
th

e 
re

m
ai

ni
ng

 g
eo

gr
ap

hi
ca

l 
ar

ea
s 

of
 L

ee
ds

. 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
B

oa
rd

 
(P

or
tfo

lio
: C

hi
ld

re
ns

 
S

er
vi

ce
s)

 
 

3/
12

/0
8 

D
ur

in
g 

th
e 

A
ut

um
n 

an
d 

S
pr

in
g 

Te
rm

s 
w

ith
 

st
ak

eh
ol

de
rs

 a
nd

 
re

le
va

nt
 p

ar
tie

s.
 

  

Th
e 

re
po

rt 
to

 b
e 

is
su

ed
 to

 
th

e 
de

ci
si

on
 m

ak
er

 w
ith

 th
e 

ag
en

da
 fo

r t
he

 m
ee

tin
g.

 
 

C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

of
 

E
du

ca
tio

n 
Le

ed
s 

ja
ck

ie
.g

re
en

@
le

ed
s.

go
v.

uk
 

 

In
de

pe
nd

an
ce

, W
el

lb
ei

ng
 

an
d 

C
ho

ic
e 

In
sp

ec
tio

n 
of

 
A

du
lt 

S
oc

ia
l S

er
vi

ce
s 

20
08

 
To

 n
ot

e 
ou

tc
om

e 
of

 th
e 

In
sp

ec
tio

n 
an

d 
to

 c
on

si
de

r 
re

fe
rr

al
 to

 th
e 

A
du

lt 
S

oc
ia

l 
C

ar
e 

S
cr

ut
in

y 
B

oa
rd

 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
B

oa
rd

 
(P

or
tfo

lio
: A

du
lt 

S
oc

ia
l S

er
vi

ce
s)

 
 

3/
12

/0
8 

   

Th
e 

re
po

rt 
to

 b
e 

is
su

ed
 to

 
th

e 
de

ci
si

on
 m

ak
er

 w
ith

 th
e 

ag
en

da
 fo

r t
he

 m
ee

tin
g.

 
 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f A

du
lt 

S
oc

ia
l 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
de

nn
is

.h
ol

m
es

@
le

ed
s.

go
v.

uk
 

 

Page 48



 
K

ey
 D

ec
is

io
ns

 
D

ec
is

io
n 

M
ak

er
 

E
xp

ec
te

d 
D

at
e 

of
 

D
ec

is
io

n 

P
ro

po
se

d 
 

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

D
oc

um
en

ts
 to

 b
e 

C
on

si
de

re
d 

by
 D

ec
is

io
n 

M
ak

er
 

Le
ad

 O
ff

ic
er

 
(T

o 
w

ho
m

 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 m

ad
e 

an
d 

em
ai

l 
ad

dr
es

s 
to

 s
en

d 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 to
) 

A
nn

ua
l P

re
fo

rm
an

ce
 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t (

S
ta

r R
at

in
g)

 
fo

r A
du

lt 
S

oc
ia

l S
er

vi
ce

s 
To

 n
ot

e 
th

e 
ou

tc
om

e 
of

 th
e 

A
nn

ua
l P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t t

o 
co

ns
id

er
 

re
fe

rr
al

 to
 th

e 
A

du
lt 

S
oc

ia
l 

C
ar

e 
S

cr
ut

in
y 

B
oa

rd
. 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
B

oa
rd

 
(P

or
tfo

lio
: A

du
lt 

S
oc

ia
l S

er
vi

ce
s)

 
 

3/
12

/0
8 

   

Th
e 

re
po

rt 
to

 b
e 

is
su

ed
 to

 
th

e 
de

ci
si

on
 m

ak
er

 w
ith

 th
e 

ag
en

da
 fo

r t
he

 m
ee

tin
g.

 
 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f A

du
lt 

S
oc

ia
l 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
de

nn
is

.h
ol

m
es

@
le

ed
s.

go
v.

uk
 

 

V
is

io
n 

fo
r C

ou
nc

il 
Le

is
ur

e 
C

en
tre

s 
To

 c
on

si
de

r p
ro

po
sa

ls
 fo

r 
fu

tu
re

 in
ve

st
m

en
t i

n 
C

ou
nc

il 
Le

is
ur

e 
C

en
tre

s 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

th
e 

co
nc

lu
si

on
 o

f 
a 

pu
bl

ic
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
ex

er
ci

se
. 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
B

oa
rd

 
(P

or
tfo

lio
: L

ei
su

re
) 

 

3/
12

/0
8 

Th
e 

pu
bl

ic
, A

re
a 

C
om

m
itt

ee
s,

 Y
ou

th
 

C
ou

nc
il,

 C
iti

ze
ns

 
P

an
el

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 k

ey
 

st
ak

e 
ho

ld
er

s.
 

  

Th
e 

re
po

rt 
to

 b
e 

is
su

ed
 to

 
th

e 
de

ci
si

on
 m

ak
er

 w
ith

 th
e 

ag
en

da
 fo

r t
he

 m
ee

tin
g 

 

C
hi

ef
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
O

ffi
ce

r 
  

Page 49



 
K

ey
 D

ec
is

io
ns

 
D

ec
is

io
n 

M
ak

er
 

E
xp

ec
te

d 
D

at
e 

of
 

D
ec

is
io

n 

P
ro

po
se

d 
 

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

D
oc

um
en

ts
 to

 b
e 

C
on

si
de

re
d 

by
 D

ec
is

io
n 

M
ak

er
 

Le
ad

 O
ff

ic
er

 
(T

o 
w

ho
m

 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 m

ad
e 

an
d 

em
ai

l 
ad

dr
es

s 
to

 s
en

d 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 to
) 

H
om

e 
E

ne
rg

y 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
ct

 1
2t

h 
R

ep
or

t 
A

pp
ro

va
l f

or
 re

le
as

e 
to

 
D

E
FR

A
, s

ig
ni

ng
 o

ff 
by

 
C

hi
ef

 O
ffi

ce
r p

rio
r t

o 
re

le
as

e 
fo

r t
he

 1
4th

 
N

ov
em

be
r d

ea
dl

in
e 

an
d 

fo
r 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

to
 th

e 
3r

d 
 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

8 
E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

B
oa

rd
. 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
B

oa
rd

 
  

3/
12

/0
8 

N
/A

 
  

R
ep

or
t 

 
D

ire
ct

or
 o

f 
E

nv
iro

nm
en

t a
nd

 
N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

s 
  

Page 50



 
K

ey
 D

ec
is

io
ns

 
D

ec
is

io
n 

M
ak

er
 

E
xp

ec
te

d 
D

at
e 

of
 

D
ec

is
io

n 

P
ro

po
se

d 
 

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

D
oc

um
en

ts
 to

 b
e 

C
on

si
de

re
d 

by
 D

ec
is

io
n 

M
ak

er
 

Le
ad

 O
ff

ic
er

 
(T

o 
w

ho
m

 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 m

ad
e 

an
d 

em
ai

l 
ad

dr
es

s 
to

 s
en

d 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 to
) 

O
pt

io
ns

 fo
r c

ha
ng

es
 to

 
pr

im
ar

y 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

in
 th

e 
R

ic
hm

on
d 

H
ill

 P
la

nn
in

g 
A

re
a 

P
er

m
is

si
on

 to
 c

on
su

lt 
on

 
op

tio
ns

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
 

1)
 C

lo
se

 
M

ou
nt

 
S

t 
M

ar
y’

s 
an

d 
ex

pa
nd

 
R

ic
hm

on
d 

H
ill

 
2)

 C
lo

se
 

M
ou

nt
 

S
t 

M
ar

y’
s 

an
d 

R
ic

hm
on

d 
H

ill
, 

an
d 

es
ta

bl
is

h 
a 

ne
w

 
sc

ho
ol

 
3)

 C
lo

se
 

M
ou

nt
 

S
t 

M
ar

y’
s 

an
d 

R
ic

hm
on

d 
H

ill
, 

an
d 

es
ta

bl
is

h 
a 

jo
in

t 
co

m
m

un
ity

 
an

d 
C

at
ho

lic
 p

ro
vi

si
on

. 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
B

oa
rd

 
(P

or
tfo

lio
: C

hi
ld

re
n'

s 
S

er
vi

ce
s)

 
 

3/
12

/0
8 

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

Ja
nu

ar
y/

Fe
br

ua
ry

 
20

09
 

  

Th
e 

re
po

rt 
to

 b
e 

is
su

ed
 to

 
th

e 
de

ci
si

on
 m

ak
er

 w
ith

 th
e 

ag
en

da
 

 

C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

of
 

E
du

ca
tio

n 
Le

ed
s 

  

Page 51



 
K

ey
 D

ec
is

io
ns

 
D

ec
is

io
n 

M
ak

er
 

E
xp

ec
te

d 
D

at
e 

of
 

D
ec

is
io

n 

P
ro

po
se

d 
 

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

D
oc

um
en

ts
 to

 b
e 

C
on

si
de

re
d 

by
 D

ec
is

io
n 

M
ak

er
 

Le
ad

 O
ff

ic
er

 
(T

o 
w

ho
m

 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 m

ad
e 

an
d 

em
ai

l 
ad

dr
es

s 
to

 s
en

d 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 to
) 

S
ou

th
 L

ee
ds

 H
ig

h 
S

ch
oo

l 
A

pp
ro

ve
 th

e 
pr

op
os

al
 to

 
cl

os
e 

S
ou

th
 L

ee
ds

 H
ig

h 
S

ch
oo

l a
nd

 re
pl

ac
e 

it 
w

ith
 

an
 A

ca
de

m
y 

to
 s

er
ve

 th
e 

ne
ed

s 
of

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 fr

om
 th

e 
B

ee
st

on
 &

 H
ol

be
ck

, C
ity

 &
 

H
un

sl
et

 a
nd

 M
id

dl
et

on
 

P
ar

k 
w

ar
ds

. 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
B

oa
rd

 
(P

or
tfo

lio
: C

hi
ld

re
n'

s 
S

er
vi

ce
s)

 
 

3/
12

/0
8 

P
ub

lic
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

W
ar

d 
C

ou
nc

ill
or

s 
  

Th
e 

re
po

rt 
to

 b
e 

is
su

ed
 to

 
th

e 
de

ci
si

on
 m

ak
er

 w
ith

 th
e 

ag
en

da
 fo

r t
he

 m
ee

tin
g 

 

C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

of
 

E
du

ca
tio

n 
Le

ed
s 

  

In
ta

ke
 H

ig
h 

S
ch

oo
l A

rts
 

C
ol

le
ge

 
A

pp
ro

ve
 th

e 
pr

op
os

al
 to

 
cl

os
e 

In
ta

ke
 H

ig
h 

S
ch

oo
l 

an
d 

re
pl

ac
e 

it 
w

ith
 a

n 
A

ca
de

m
y 

to
 s

er
ve

 th
e 

ne
ed

s 
of

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 fr

om
 th

e 
B

ra
m

le
y 

an
d 

S
ta

nn
in

gl
ey

 
W

ar
d.

 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
B

oa
rd

 
(P

or
tfo

lio
: C

hi
ld

re
n'

s 
S

er
vi

ce
s)

 
 

3/
12

/0
8 

P
ub

lic
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

W
ar

d 
C

ou
nc

ill
or

s 
  

Th
e 

re
po

rt 
to

 b
e 

is
su

ed
 to

 
th

e 
de

ci
si

on
 m

ak
er

 w
ith

 th
e 

ag
en

da
 fo

r t
he

 m
ee

tin
g 

 

C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

of
 

E
du

ca
tio

n 
Le

ed
s 

  

Page 52



 
K

ey
 D

ec
is

io
ns

 
D

ec
is

io
n 

M
ak

er
 

E
xp

ec
te

d 
D

at
e 

of
 

D
ec

is
io

n 

P
ro

po
se

d 
 

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

D
oc

um
en

ts
 to

 b
e 

C
on

si
de

re
d 

by
 D

ec
is

io
n 

M
ak

er
 

Le
ad

 O
ff

ic
er

 
(T

o 
w

ho
m

 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 m

ad
e 

an
d 

em
ai

l 
ad

dr
es

s 
to

 s
en

d 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 to
) 

M
ac

hi
ne

ry
 o

f G
ov

er
nm

en
t 

an
d 

14
-1

9 
(2

5)
 

C
om

m
is

io
ni

ng
 

A
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 

A
gr

ee
 th

e 
pr

in
ci

pl
es

 
un

de
rp

in
ni

ng
 th

e 
Le

ed
s 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 to
 th

e 
co

m
m

is
si

on
in

g 
of

 1
4+

 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

an
d 

re
co

m
m

en
d 

th
at

 th
e 

LS
C

 a
gr

ee
 s

pe
ci

fic
 

pr
op

os
al

s 
fo

r t
he

 
co

m
m

is
si

on
in

g 
of

 p
os

t 1
6 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
fro

m
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

09
. 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
B

oa
rd

 
(P

or
tfo

lio
: C

hi
ld

re
n'

s 
S

er
vi

ce
s)

 
 

3/
12

/0
8 

S
ch

oo
l G

ov
er

no
rs

, 
se

co
nd

ar
y 

H
ea

dt
ea

ch
er

s,
 F

E
 

C
ol

le
ge

s 
an

d 
LS

C
 

  

Th
e 

re
po

rt 
to

 b
e 

is
su

ed
 to

 
th

e 
de

ci
si

on
 m

ak
er

 w
ith

 th
e 

ag
en

da
 fo

r t
he

 m
ee

tin
g 

 

C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

of
 

E
du

ca
tio

n 
Le

ed
s 

  

D
es

ig
n 

C
os

t R
ep

or
t- 

R
ou

nd
ha

y 
C

C
 

To
 in

je
ct

 £
30

0k
 in

to
 th

e 
C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

C
ap

ita
l 

P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

an
d 

gi
ve

 
au

th
or

ity
 to

 in
cu

r t
hi

s 
ex

pe
nd

itu
re

. 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
B

oa
rd

 
(P

or
tfo

lio
: C

hi
ld

re
n'

s 
S

er
vi

ce
s)

 
 

3/
12

/0
8 

E
du

ca
tio

n 
Le

ed
s,

 
C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
S

er
vi

ce
s,

 
P

ro
vi

de
rs

 a
nd

 
st

ak
eh

ol
de

rs
 c

ity
 w

id
e 

  

Th
e 

re
po

rt 
to

 b
e 

is
su

ed
 to

 
th

e 
de

ci
si

on
 m

ak
er

 w
ith

 th
e 

ag
en

da
 fo

r t
he

 m
ee

tin
g 

 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f C

hi
ld

re
n'

s 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

  

Page 53



 
K

ey
 D

ec
is

io
ns

 
D

ec
is

io
n 

M
ak

er
 

E
xp

ec
te

d 
D

at
e 

of
 

D
ec

is
io

n 

P
ro

po
se

d 
 

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

D
oc

um
en

ts
 to

 b
e 

C
on

si
de

re
d 

by
 D

ec
is

io
n 

M
ak

er
 

Le
ad

 O
ff

ic
er

 
(T

o 
w

ho
m

 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 m

ad
e 

an
d 

em
ai

l 
ad

dr
es

s 
to

 s
en

d 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 to
) 

D
es

ig
n 

C
os

t R
ep

or
t- 

B
os

to
n 

S
pa

 C
C

 
To

 in
je

ct
 £

35
0k

 in
to

 th
e 

C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
C

ap
ita

l 
P

ro
gr

am
m

e 
an

d 
gi

ve
 

au
th

or
ity

 to
 in

cu
r t

hi
s 

ex
pe

nd
itu

re
. 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
B

oa
rd

 
(P

or
tfo

lio
: C

hi
ld

re
n'

s 
S

er
vi

ce
s)

 
 

3/
12

/0
8 

E
du

ca
tio

n 
Le

ed
s,

 
C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
S

er
vi

ce
s,

 
P

ro
vi

de
rs

 a
nd

 
st

ak
eh

ol
de

rs
 c

ity
 w

id
e 

  

Th
e 

re
po

rt 
to

 b
e 

is
su

ed
 to

 
th

e 
de

ci
si

on
 m

ak
er

 w
ith

 th
e 

ag
en

da
 fo

r t
he

 m
ee

tin
g 

 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f C

hi
ld

re
n'

s 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

  

Lo
ng

 T
er

m
 B

ur
ia

l 
R

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

 F
or

 T
he

 C
ity

 
A

gr
ee

 to
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

m
ea

su
re

s 
to

 s
ec

ur
e 

lo
ng

 
te

rm
 b

ur
ia

l n
ee

ds
 fo

r t
he

 
C

ity
. 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
B

oa
rd

 
(P

or
tfo

lio
: L

ei
su

re
) 

 

3/
12

/0
8 

Le
ad

er
, D

ep
ut

y 
Le

ad
er

 
an

d 
E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

M
em

be
r 

fo
r L

ei
su

re
. 

  

Th
e 

re
po

rt 
to

 b
e 

is
su

ed
 to

 
th

e 
de

ci
si

on
 m

ak
er

 w
ith

 th
e 

ag
en

da
 fo

r t
he

 m
ee

tin
g.

 
 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f C

ity
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
  

Le
ed

s 
Lo

ca
l D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

Fr
am

ew
or

k 
A

nn
ua

l 
M

on
ito

rin
g 

R
ep

or
t 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
B

oa
rd

 A
pp

ro
va

l 
of

 C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 fo
r t

he
 

S
ec

re
ta

ry
 o

f S
ta

te
’s

 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n.

  

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
B

oa
rd

 
(P

or
tfo

lio
: 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t a
nd

 
R

eg
en

er
at

io
n)

 
 

3/
12

/0
8 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t P
la

n 
P

an
el

 
  

Th
e 

re
po

rt 
to

 b
e 

is
su

ed
 to

 
th

e 
de

ci
si

on
 m

ak
er

 w
ith

 th
e 

ag
en

da
 fo

r t
he

 m
ee

tin
g 

 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f C

ity
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
  

Page 54



 
K

ey
 D

ec
is

io
ns

 
D

ec
is

io
n 

M
ak

er
 

E
xp

ec
te

d 
D

at
e 

of
 

D
ec

is
io

n 

P
ro

po
se

d 
 

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

D
oc

um
en

ts
 to

 b
e 

C
on

si
de

re
d 

by
 D

ec
is

io
n 

M
ak

er
 

Le
ad

 O
ff

ic
er

 
(T

o 
w

ho
m

 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 m

ad
e 

an
d 

em
ai

l 
ad

dr
es

s 
to

 s
en

d 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 to
) 

W
es

t Y
or

ks
hi

re
 E

ne
rg

y 
E

ffi
ci

en
cy

 S
ch

em
e 

20
08

 - 
20

11
 

A
pp

ro
va

l t
o 

be
 g

iv
en

 to
 

at
ta

ch
 to

 th
e 

W
es

t 
Y

or
ks

hi
re

 E
ne

rg
y 

E
ffi

ci
en

cy
 

S
ch

em
e 

fo
r 2

00
8 

– 
20

11
: 

th
at

 th
e 

sc
he

m
e 

an
nu

al
 

an
d 

ap
pr

ox
im

at
e 

su
b 

se
t 

ex
pe

nd
itu

re
 is

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
fo

r 
di

sc
ha

rg
e:

 th
at

 C
al

de
rd

al
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

co
nt

in
ue

 in
 th

ei
r 

ro
le

 a
s 

ba
nk

er
 fo

r t
he

 W
es

t 
Y

or
ks

hi
re

 E
ne

rg
y 

E
ffi

ci
en

cy
 

S
ch

em
e 

fo
r t

he
 p

er
io

d 
A

pr
il 

20
08

 to
 M

ar
ch

 2
01

1 
an

d 
th

e 
Le

ga
l D

el
eg

at
io

n 
fo

rm
 

is
 a

pp
ro

ve
d.

 
  

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
B

oa
rd

 
(P

or
tfo

lio
 : 

N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 a

nd
 

H
ou

si
ng

) 
 

3/
12

/0
8 

N
/A

 
  

Th
e 

re
po

rt 
to

 b
e 

is
su

ed
 to

 
th

e 
de

ci
si

on
 m

ak
er

 w
ith

 th
e 

ag
en

da
 fo

r t
he

 m
ee

tin
g.

 
 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
t a

nd
 

N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
s 

da
rr

en
.a

da
m

s@
le

ed
s.

go
v.

uk
 

 

B
S

F 
P

ha
se

 2
 

P
rie

st
ho

rp
e 

S
pe

ci
al

is
t 

S
po

rts
 C

ol
le

ge
 to

 s
ee

k 
au

th
or

ity
 to

 s
pe

nd
 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
B

oa
rd

 
(P

or
tfo

lio
 : 

C
hi

ld
re

ns
 

S
er

vi
ce

s)
 

 

3/
12

/0
8 

   

Th
e 

re
po

rt 
to

 b
e 

is
su

ed
 to

 
th

e 
de

ci
si

on
 m

ak
er

 w
ith

 th
e 

ag
en

da
 fo

r t
he

 m
ee

tin
g.

 
 

D
ep

ut
y 

C
hi

ef
 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
da

vi
d.

ou
tra

m
@

le
ed

s.
g

ov
.u

k 
 

Page 55



 
K

ey
 D

ec
is

io
ns

 
D

ec
is

io
n 

M
ak

er
 

E
xp

ec
te

d 
D

at
e 

of
 

D
ec

is
io

n 

P
ro

po
se

d 
 

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

D
oc

um
en

ts
 to

 b
e 

C
on

si
de

re
d 

by
 D

ec
is

io
n 

M
ak

er
 

Le
ad

 O
ff

ic
er

 
(T

o 
w

ho
m

 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 m

ad
e 

an
d 

em
ai

l 
ad

dr
es

s 
to

 s
en

d 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 to
) 

R
ep

ro
vi

si
on

 o
f W

in
dl

es
fo

rd
 

G
re

en
 (a

 h
os

te
l f

or
 a

du
lts

 
w

ith
 le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
in

 
W

oo
dl

es
fo

rd
) 

To
 u

pd
at

e 
M

em
be

rs
 o

n 
re

vi
si

on
s 

to
 th

e 
sc

he
m

e 
fo

r 
a 

ne
w

 s
up

po
rte

d 
liv

in
g 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t f

or
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
at

 
W

in
dl

es
fo

rd
 G

re
en

, a
nd

 to
 

ob
ta

in
 a

pp
ro

va
l t

o 
pr

oc
ee

d 
w

ith
 th

e 
re

vi
se

d 
sc

he
m

e.
 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
B

oa
rd

 
(P

or
tfo

lio
: A

du
lt 

H
ea

lth
 a

nd
 S

oc
ia

l 
C

ar
e)

 
 

3/
12

/0
8 

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

ha
s 

ta
ke

n 
pl

ac
e 

w
ith

 s
er

vi
ce

 
us

er
s,

 p
ar

en
ts

 &
 

ca
re

rs
, s

ta
ff,

 lo
ca

l 
re

si
de

nt
s 

an
d 

W
ar

d 
M

em
be

rs
. 

  

Th
e 

re
po

rt 
to

 b
e 

is
su

ed
 to

 
th

e 
de

ci
si

on
 m

ak
er

 w
ith

 th
e 

ag
en

da
 fo

r t
he

 m
ee

tin
g 

 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f A

du
lt 

S
oc

ia
l 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
  

Le
ed

s 
S

oc
ie

ty
 fo

r L
ee

ds
 

D
ea

f a
nd

 B
lin

d 
P

eo
pl

e 
To

 re
qu

es
t a

n 
ex

te
ns

io
n 

to
 

th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

co
nt

ra
ct

 to
 

al
lo

w
 fo

r t
hi

s 
se

rv
ic

e 
to

 b
e 

pu
t o

ut
 to

 te
nd

er
. T

he
 

ex
te

ns
io

n 
w

ill
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 

th
er

e 
is

 n
o 

di
sr

up
tio

n 
in

 
se

rv
ic

es
. 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f A

du
lt 

S
oc

ia
l S

er
vi

ce
s 

  

4/
12

/0
8 

S
er

vi
ce

 u
se

rs
 a

nd
 

st
ak

eh
ol

de
rs

 
  

R
ep

or
t a

nd
 s

er
vi

ce
 re

vi
ew

 
ex

ec
ut

iv
e 

su
m

m
ar

y 
 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f A

du
lt 

S
oc

ia
l 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
tim

.o
's

he
a@

le
ed

s.
go

v.
uk

 
 

Page 56



 
K

ey
 D

ec
is

io
ns

 
D

ec
is

io
n 

M
ak

er
 

E
xp

ec
te

d 
D

at
e 

of
 

D
ec

is
io

n 

P
ro

po
se

d 
 

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

D
oc

um
en

ts
 to

 b
e 

C
on

si
de

re
d 

by
 D

ec
is

io
n 

M
ak

er
 

Le
ad

 O
ff

ic
er

 
(T

o 
w

ho
m

 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 m

ad
e 

an
d 

em
ai

l 
ad

dr
es

s 
to

 s
en

d 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 to
) 

R
eq

ue
st

 to
 w

ai
ve

 c
on

tra
ct

 
pr

oc
ed

ur
e 

ru
le

 1
3 

in
 

re
sp

ec
t o

f t
he

 M
oo

r 
A

lle
rto

n 
E

xt
ra

 C
ar

e 
H

ou
si

ng
 S

ch
em

e 
( Y

ew
 

Tr
ee

 C
ou

rt)
 a

nd
 D

em
en

tia
 

D
ay

 C
ar

e 
S

ch
em

e 
( B

ay
 

Tr
ee

 R
es

ou
rc

e 
C

en
tre

) 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f A

du
lt 

S
oc

ia
l S

er
vi

ce
s 

  

4/
12

/0
8 

Le
ga

l a
nd

 
P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t. 

  

R
ep

or
t t

o 
th

e 
D

A
S

S
 

 
D

ire
ct

or
 o

f A
du

lt 
S

oc
ia

l 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

de
nn

is
.h

ol
m

es
@

le
ed

s.
go

v.
uk

 
 

Th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 a
 n

ew
 

m
ob

ile
 a

nd
 fi

xe
d 

vo
ic

e 
an

d 
da

ta
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

co
nt

ra
ct

 
Th

e 
te

nd
er

 is
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 
be

in
g 

ad
ve

rti
se

d 
an

d 
w

e 
ai

m
 to

 b
e 

in
 p

os
iti

on
 to

 
m

ak
e 

a 
de

ci
si

on
 a

nd
 a

w
ar

d 
in

 D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

8.
 T

he
 

ne
w

 c
on

tra
ct

 w
ill

 n
ee

d 
to

 
be

 in
 p

la
ce

 fo
r w

he
n 

th
e 

cu
rr

en
t a

gr
ee

m
en

t w
ith

 
O

ra
ng

e 
ex

pi
re

s 
in

 M
ar

ch
 

20
09

. 

C
hi

ef
 IC

T 
O

ffi
ce

r 
  

2/
1/

09
 

   

Te
nd

er
 p

ac
k 

/ b
id

s 
 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f R

es
ou

rc
es

 
  

S
up

pl
em

en
ta

ry
 S

ch
oo

ls
 

A
pp

ro
ve

 c
on

tra
ct

 a
w

ar
d.

 
C

hi
ef

 O
ffi

ce
r -

 E
ar

ly
 

Y
ea

rs
 a

nd
 Y

ou
th

 
S

er
vi

ce
 

  

2/
1/

09
 

C
P

U
 p

ro
ce

ss
 

co
m

pe
tit

iv
e 

te
nd

er
. 

  

S
pe

ci
fic

at
io

n 
an

d 
E

va
lu

at
io

n.
 

 

S
al

ly
 T

hr
el

fa
ll,

 H
ea

d 
of

 
E

ar
ly

 Y
ea

rs
 S

er
vi

ce
 

jo
dy

.s
he

pp
ar

d@
le

ed
s.

go
v.

uk
 

 

Page 57



 
K

ey
 D

ec
is

io
ns

 
D

ec
is

io
n 

M
ak

er
 

E
xp

ec
te

d 
D

at
e 

of
 

D
ec

is
io

n 

P
ro

po
se

d 
 

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

D
oc

um
en

ts
 to

 b
e 

C
on

si
de

re
d 

by
 D

ec
is

io
n 

M
ak

er
 

Le
ad

 O
ff

ic
er

 
(T

o 
w

ho
m

 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 m

ad
e 

an
d 

em
ai

l 
ad

dr
es

s 
to

 s
en

d 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 to
) 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
Y

ou
ng

 
P

eo
pl

es
 P

ar
tic

ip
at

io
n 

A
pp

ro
ve

 c
on

tra
ct

 a
w

ar
d 

C
hi

ef
 O

ffi
ce

r -
 E

ar
ly

 
Y

ea
rs

 a
nd

 Y
ou

th
 

S
er

vi
ce

 
  

2/
1/

09
 

C
P

U
, P

ar
tic

ip
at

io
n 

G
ro

up
 

  

P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t d
oc

um
en

ts
 

 
S

al
ly

 T
hr

el
fa

ll,
 H

ea
d 

of
 

E
ar

ly
 Y

ea
rs

 S
er

vi
ce

 
ge

rr
y.

hu
ds

on
@

le
ed

s.
g

ov
.u

k 
 

Fa
m

ily
 S

up
po

rt 
8-

13
 y

ea
r 

ol
ds

 
To

 a
cc

ep
t t

he
 C

on
tra

ct
  

C
hi

ef
 O

ffi
ce

r -
 E

ar
ly

 
Y

ea
rs

 a
nd

 Y
ou

th
 

S
er

vi
ce

 
  

2/
1/

09
 

C
P

U
, L

C
F 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
B

oa
rd

, F
am

ily
 S

up
po

rt 
an

d 
P

ar
en

tin
g 

B
oa

rd
, 

Fa
m

ily
 S

up
po

rt 
an

d 
P

ar
en

tin
g 

su
b-

gr
ou

ps
 

an
d 

w
ed

ge
s.

 
  

Te
nd

er
 d

oc
um

en
t 

 
C

hi
ef

 O
ffi

ce
r -

 E
ar

ly
 

Y
ea

rs
 a

nd
 Y

ou
th

 
S

er
vi

ce
 

  

Le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

tie
s 

st
af

fin
g 

re
vi

ew
 

To
 a

pp
ro

ve
 a

 re
vi

se
d 

st
af

fin
g 

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
fo

r t
he

 
le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
ty

 s
er

vi
ce

 
w

ith
in

 s
oc

ia
l c

ar
e.

 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f 

R
es

ou
rc

es
, C

hi
ef

 
O

ffi
ce

r (
H

R
) 

  

2/
1/

09
 

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

ha
s 

ta
ke

n 
pl

ac
e 

w
ith

 s
ta

ff 
an

d 
th

ei
r r

ep
re

se
nt

at
iv

es
. 

  

R
ep

or
t t

o 
th

e 
C

hi
ef

 H
um

an
 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 O

ffi
ce

r i
nc

lu
di

ng
 

up
da

te
d 

jo
b 

ou
tli

ne
s.

 
 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f R

es
ou

rc
es

 
pa

ul
.b

ro
ug

ht
on

@
le

ed
s.

go
v.

uk
 

 

Page 58



 
K

ey
 D

ec
is

io
ns

 
D

ec
is

io
n 

M
ak

er
 

E
xp

ec
te

d 
D

at
e 

of
 

D
ec

is
io

n 

P
ro

po
se

d 
 

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

D
oc

um
en

ts
 to

 b
e 

C
on

si
de

re
d 

by
 D

ec
is

io
n 

M
ak

er
 

Le
ad

 O
ff

ic
er

 
(T

o 
w

ho
m

 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 m

ad
e 

an
d 

em
ai

l 
ad

dr
es

s 
to

 s
en

d 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 to
) 

M
en

ta
l H

ea
lth

 S
er

vi
ce

 
R

ev
ie

w
s 

To
 re

qu
es

t a
 1

2 
m

on
th

 
ex

te
ns

io
n 

to
 th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
fo

ur
te

en
 c

on
tra

ct
s 

to
 a

llo
w

 
fo

r t
he

 m
en

ta
l h

ea
lth

 
re

vi
ew

s 
to

 c
on

tin
ue

. 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f A

du
lt 

S
oc

ia
l S

er
vi

ce
s 

  

8/
1/

09
 

Th
es

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

re
 

cu
rr

en
tly

 b
ei

ng
 

re
vi

ew
ed

 a
nd

 s
er

vi
ce

 
us

er
s 

an
d 

st
ak

e 
ho

ld
er

s 
ar

e 
pl

ay
in

g 
a 

ke
y 

pa
rt.

 
  

R
ep

or
t t

o 
th

e 
D

ire
ct

or
 a

nd
 

se
rv

ic
e 

re
vi

ew
s 

su
m

m
ar

y 
 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f A

du
lt 

S
oc

ia
l 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
tim

.o
's

he
a@

le
ed

s.
go

v.
uk

 
 

Te
rr

y 
Y

or
at

h 
H

ou
se

 
To

 re
qu

es
t a

 1
2 

m
on

th
 

ex
te

ns
io

n 
to

 th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

co
nt

ra
ct

 to
 a

llo
w

 fo
r t

hi
s 

se
rv

ic
e 

to
 b

e 
re

vi
ew

ed
 a

nd
 

pu
t o

ut
 to

 te
nd

er
. T

hi
s 

w
ill

 
en

su
re

 th
at

 th
er

e 
is

 n
o 

di
sr

up
tio

n 
to

 th
is

 s
er

vi
ce

.  

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f A

du
lt 

S
oc

ia
l S

er
vi

ce
s 

  

8/
1/

09
 

To
 c

on
su

lt 
w

ith
 

pa
re

nt
s 

/ c
ar

er
s,

 
st

ak
eh

ol
de

rs
 a

nd
 

se
rv

ic
e 

us
er

s 
ab

ou
t 

fu
tu

re
 p

ro
vi

si
on

. 
  

R
ep

or
t t

o 
th

e 
D

ire
ct

or
 a

nd
 

LC
IL

 s
er

vi
ce

 u
se

r 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
re

po
rt 

 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f A

du
lt 

S
oc

ia
l 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
tim

.o
's

he
a@

le
ed

s.
go

v.
uk

 
 

S
t A

nn
e'

s 
A

lc
oh

ol
 

R
es

id
en

tia
l R

eh
ab

 
To

 re
qu

es
t a

 1
2 

m
on

th
 

ex
te

ns
io

n 
of

 th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

th
re

e 
ye

ar
 c

on
tra

ct
 to

 a
llo

w
 

te
nd

er
 n

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
 to

 ta
ke

 
pl

ac
e.

 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f A

du
lt 

S
oc

ia
l S

er
vi

ce
s 

 

8/
1/

09
 

To
 c

on
su

lt 
w

ith
 

st
ak

eh
ol

de
rs

, p
ar

en
ts

 / 
ca

re
rs

 a
nd

 s
er

vi
ce

 
us

er
s 

ab
ou

t f
ut

ur
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n.
 

  

R
ep

or
t t

o 
th

e 
D

ire
ct

or
 a

nd
 

C
on

tra
ct

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f A

du
lt 

S
oc

ia
l 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
tim

.o
's

he
a@

le
ed

s.
go

v.
uk

 
 

Page 59



 
K

ey
 D

ec
is

io
ns

 
D

ec
is

io
n 

M
ak

er
 

E
xp

ec
te

d 
D

at
e 

of
 

D
ec

is
io

n 

P
ro

po
se

d 
 

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

D
oc

um
en

ts
 to

 b
e 

C
on

si
de

re
d 

by
 D

ec
is

io
n 

M
ak

er
 

Le
ad

 O
ff

ic
er

 
(T

o 
w

ho
m

 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 m

ad
e 

an
d 

em
ai

l 
ad

dr
es

s 
to

 s
en

d 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 to
) 

Le
ed

s 
S

ky
lin

e 
H

IV
 / 

A
ID

S
 

S
oc

ia
l C

ar
e 

an
d 

P
re

ve
nt

io
n 

S
er

vi
ce

 
To

 re
qu

es
t a

 1
2 

m
on

th
 

ex
te

ns
io

n 
of

 th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

on
e 

ye
ar

 c
on

tra
ct

. 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f A

du
lt 

S
oc

ia
l S

er
vi

ce
s 

  

8/
1/

09
 

S
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

s,
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

us
er

s 
an

d 
pa

rtn
er

s 
  

R
ep

or
t t

o 
th

e 
D

ire
ct

or
, 

C
on

tra
ct

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f A

du
lt 

S
oc

ia
l 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
tim

.o
's

he
a@

le
ed

s.
go

v.
uk

 
 

C
ity

 C
en

tre
 S

w
im

m
in

g 
To

 a
gr

ee
 a

 c
ap

ita
l 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

to
 th

e 
U

ni
ve

rs
ity

 o
f L

ee
ds

 in
 

re
tu

rn
 fo

r p
ub

lic
 s

w
im

m
in

g 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 th

ei
r p

ro
po

se
d 

ne
w

 p
oo

l. 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
B

oa
rd

 
(P

or
tfo

lio
: L

ei
su

re
) 

 

14
/1

/0
9 

   

Th
e 

re
po

rt 
to

 b
e 

is
su

ed
 to

 
th

e 
de

ci
si

on
 m

ak
er

 w
ith

 th
e 

ag
en

da
 fo

r t
he

 m
ee

tin
g 

 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f C

ity
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
  

Th
e 

C
ity

 V
ar

ie
tie

s 
M

us
ic

 
H

al
l R

ef
ur

bi
sh

m
en

t P
ro

je
ct

 
A

pp
ro

ve
 th

e 
in

cu
rr

in
g 

of
 

ex
pe

nd
itu

re
 fo

r t
he

 
pr

op
os

ed
 re

fu
rb

is
hm

en
t 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
B

oa
rd

 
(P

or
tfo

lio
: L

ei
su

re
) 

 

14
/1

/0
9 

Th
e 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
M

em
be

r f
or

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t a

nd
 

R
eg

en
er

at
io

n 
an

d 
th

e 
E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

M
em

be
r f

or
 

Le
is

ur
e.

 
  

Th
e 

re
po

rt 
to

 b
e 

is
su

ed
 to

 
th

e 
de

ci
si

on
 m

ak
er

 w
ith

 th
e 

ag
en

da
 fo

r t
he

 m
ee

tin
g 

 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f C

ity
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
  

Page 60



 
K

ey
 D

ec
is

io
ns

 
D

ec
is

io
n 

M
ak

er
 

E
xp

ec
te

d 
D

at
e 

of
 

D
ec

is
io

n 

P
ro

po
se

d 
 

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

D
oc

um
en

ts
 to

 b
e 

C
on

si
de

re
d 

by
 D

ec
is

io
n 

M
ak

er
 

Le
ad

 O
ff

ic
er

 
(T

o 
w

ho
m

 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 m

ad
e 

an
d 

em
ai

l 
ad

dr
es

s 
to

 s
en

d 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 to
) 

W
et

he
rb

y 
C

hi
ld

re
n'

s 
C

en
tre

 
D

es
ig

n 
co

st
 re

po
rt 

to
 in

je
ct

 
£3

50
k 

in
to

 th
e 

C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
C

ap
ita

l 
P

ro
gr

am
m

e 
an

d 
gi

ve
 

au
th

or
ity

 to
 in

cu
r t

hi
s 

ex
pe

nd
itu

re
. 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
B

oa
rd

 
(P

or
tfo

lio
: C

hi
ld

re
n'

s 
S

er
vi

ce
s)

 
 

14
/1

/0
9 

E
du

ca
tio

n 
Le

ed
s,

 
C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
S

er
vi

ce
s,

 
P

ro
vi

de
rs

 a
nd

 
S

ta
ke

ho
ld

er
s 

ci
ty

 w
id

e.
 

  

Th
e 

re
po

rt 
to

 b
e 

is
su

ed
 to

 
th

e 
de

ci
si

on
 m

ak
er

 w
ith

 th
e 

ag
en

da
 fo

r t
he

 m
ee

tin
g.

 
 

C
hi

ef
 O

ffi
ce

r -
 E

ar
ly

 
Y

ea
rs

 a
nd

 Y
ou

th
 

S
er

vi
ce

 
sa

lly
.th

re
lfa

ll@
le

ed
s.

go
v.

uk
 

 

C
on

se
nt

s 
an

d 
va

ria
tio

ns
 to

 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il's
 L

oa
n 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t w

ith
 Y

or
ks

hi
re

 
C

ou
nt

y 
C

ric
ke

t C
lu

b 
To

 g
ra

nt
 c

on
se

nt
s 

an
d 

ag
re

e 
va

ria
tio

ns
 to

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
Lo

an
 A

gr
ee

m
en

t 
w

ith
 Y

or
ks

hi
re

 C
ou

nt
y 

C
ric

ke
t C

lu
b 

pu
rs

ua
nt

 to
 

th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f t
he

 
H

ea
di

ng
le

y 
C

ric
ke

t G
ro

un
d 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
B

oa
rd

 
(P

or
tfo

lio
 : 

C
en

tra
l 

an
d 

C
or

po
ra

te
) 

 

14
/1

/0
9 

Th
e 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
M

em
be

r f
or

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t a

nd
 

R
eg

en
er

at
io

n 
an

d 
th

e 
E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

M
em

be
r f

or
 

C
en

tra
l a

nd
 C

or
po

ra
te

.  
  

Th
e 

re
po

rt 
to

 b
e 

is
su

ed
 to

 
th

e 
de

ci
si

on
 m

ak
er

 w
ith

 th
e 

ag
en

da
 fo

r t
he

 m
ee

tin
g 

 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f R

es
ou

rc
es

 
do

ug
.m

ee
so

n@
le

ed
s.

g
ov

.u
k 

 

C
ity

 C
en

tre
 P

ar
k 

In
 p

rin
ci

pl
e 

su
pp

or
t f

or
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f a

 C
ity

 
C

en
tre

 P
ar

k.
 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
B

oa
rd

 
(P

or
tfo

lio
: L

ei
su

re
) 

 

14
/1

/0
9 

M
em

be
rs

, O
ffi

ce
rs

, 
C

A
B

E
, C

iv
ic

 T
ru

st
 

  

Th
e 

re
po

rt 
to

 b
e 

is
su

ed
 to

 
th

e 
de

ci
si

on
 m

ak
er

 w
ith

 th
e 

ag
en

da
 fo

r t
he

 m
ee

tin
g 

 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f C

ity
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
  

Page 61



 
K

ey
 D

ec
is

io
ns

 
D

ec
is

io
n 

M
ak

er
 

E
xp

ec
te

d 
D

at
e 

of
 

D
ec

is
io

n 

P
ro

po
se

d 
 

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

D
oc

um
en

ts
 to

 b
e 

C
on

si
de

re
d 

by
 D

ec
is

io
n 

M
ak

er
 

Le
ad

 O
ff

ic
er

 
(T

o 
w

ho
m

 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 m

ad
e 

an
d 

em
ai

l 
ad

dr
es

s 
to

 s
en

d 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 to
) 

A
65

3 
D

ew
sb

ur
y 

R
oa

d 
B

us
 

P
rio

rit
y 

M
ea

su
re

s,
 R

in
g 

R
oa

d 
B

ee
st

on
 P

ar
k 

B
us

 
La

nd
 

P
er

m
is

si
on

 to
 c

on
st

ru
ct

 th
e 

sc
he

m
e,

 s
ub

je
ct

 to
 

sa
tis

fa
ct

or
y 

fu
nd

in
g 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 b
ei

ng
 in

 
pl

ac
e 

on
 re

tu
rn

 o
f t

en
de

rs
. 

Th
e 

w
or

ks
 a

re
 re

qu
ire

d 
to

 
pr

ov
id

e 
a 

qu
al

ity
 b

us
 

co
rr

id
or

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
in

 th
e 

LT
P

 a
nd

 a
re

 a
n 

in
tri

ns
ic

 
pa

rt 
of

 th
e 

Y
or

ks
hi

re
 B

us
 

In
iti

at
iv

e.
  

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
B

oa
rd

 
(P

or
tfo

lio
: 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t a
nd

 
R

eg
en

er
at

io
n)

 
 

14
/1

/0
9 

In
iti

al
 M

em
be

r 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
ha

s 
ta

ke
n 

pl
ac

e.
 

  

Th
e 

re
po

rt 
to

 b
e 

is
su

ed
 to

 
th

e 
de

ci
si

on
 m

ak
er

 w
ith

 th
e 

ag
en

da
 fo

r t
he

 m
ee

tin
g 

 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f C

ity
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
  

P
ar

ks
 a

nd
 G

re
en

 S
pa

ce
 

S
tra

te
gy

 
To

 s
ee

k 
ap

pr
ov

al
 fo

r t
he

 
pu

bl
ic

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

P
ar

ks
 

an
d 

G
re

en
 S

pa
ce

 S
tra

te
gy

. 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
B

oa
rd

 
(P

or
tfo

lio
: L

ei
su

re
) 

 

14
/1

/0
9 

E
xt

en
si

ve
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
ha

s 
ta

ke
n 

pl
ac

e 
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f t
he

 
st

ra
te

gy
 w

ith
 a

 ra
ng

e 
of

 s
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

s 
an

d 
m

em
be

rs
. 

  

Th
e 

re
po

rt 
to

 b
e 

is
su

ed
 to

 
th

e 
de

ci
si

on
 m

ak
er

 w
ith

 th
e 

ag
en

da
 fo

r t
he

 m
ee

tin
g 

 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f C

ity
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
  

Page 62



 
K

ey
 D

ec
is

io
ns

 
D

ec
is

io
n 

M
ak

er
 

E
xp

ec
te

d 
D

at
e 

of
 

D
ec

is
io

n 

P
ro

po
se

d 
 

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

D
oc

um
en

ts
 to

 b
e 

C
on

si
de

re
d 

by
 D

ec
is

io
n 

M
ak

er
 

Le
ad

 O
ff

ic
er

 
(T

o 
w

ho
m

 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 m

ad
e 

an
d 

em
ai

l 
ad

dr
es

s 
to

 s
en

d 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 to
) 

O
pt

io
ns

 fo
r c

ha
ng

es
 to

 
pr

im
ar

y 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

in
 th

e 
W

et
he

rb
y 

P
la

nn
in

g 
A

re
a 

P
er

m
is

si
on

 to
 c

on
su

lt 
on

 
op

tio
ns

 to
 re

m
ov

e 
su

rp
lu

s 
pl

ac
es

 in
 th

e 
W

et
he

rb
y 

ar
ea

.  

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
B

oa
rd

 
(P

or
tfo

lio
:C

hi
ld

re
n'

s 
S

er
vi

ce
s)

 
 

14
/1

/0
9 

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

Fe
br

ua
ry

/M
ar

ch
 2

00
9 

  

Th
e 

re
po

rt 
to

 b
e 

is
su

ed
 to

 
th

e 
de

ci
si

on
 m

ak
er

 w
ith

 th
e 

ag
en

da
 fo

r t
he

 m
ee

tin
g 

 

C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

of
 

E
du

ca
tio

n 
Le

ed
s 

  

C
la

pg
at

e 
P

rim
ar

y 
S

ch
oo

l- 
E

xt
en

si
on

 w
or

ks
 to

 fo
rm

 
tw

o 
fo

rm
s 

of
 e

nt
ry

 s
ch

oo
l 

A
pp

ro
va

l t
o 

ca
rr

y 
ou

t 
ca

pi
ta

l w
or

ks
 a

nd
 in

cu
r 

ex
pe

nd
itu

re
 in

 re
la

tio
n 

to
 

th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 s
ch

em
e 

to
 

ca
rr

y 
ou

t e
xt

en
si

on
 w

or
ks

. 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
B

oa
rd

 
(P

or
tfo

lio
: C

hi
ld

re
n'

s 
S

er
vi

ce
s)

 
 

14
/1

/0
9 

C
la

pg
at

e 
P

rim
ar

y 
S

ch
oo

l 
  

Th
e 

re
po

rt 
to

 b
e 

is
su

ed
 to

 
th

e 
de

ci
si

on
 m

ak
er

 w
ith

 th
e 

ag
en

da
 fo

r t
he

 m
ee

tin
g 

 

C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

of
 

E
du

ca
tio

n 
Le

ed
s 

  

Le
ed

s 
Fl

oo
d 

A
lle

vi
at

io
n 

S
ch

em
e:

 D
es

ig
n 

G
ui

de
 &

 
V

is
io

n 
To

 a
pp

ro
ve

 th
e 

D
es

ig
n 

G
ui

de
 a

nd
 V

is
io

n 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
B

oa
rd

 
(P

or
tfo

lio
: 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t a
nd

 
R

eg
en

er
at

io
n)

 
 

14
/1

/0
9 

Th
er

e 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
ns

 w
ith

 
st

ak
eh

ol
de

rs
 a

nd
 

in
te

rn
al

ly
. J

oi
nt

 p
ub

lic
 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
ns

 w
ill

 b
e 

he
ld

 in
 N

ov
em

be
r 

20
08

. 
  

Th
e 

re
po

rt 
to

 b
e 

is
su

ed
 to

 
th

e 
de

ci
si

on
 m

ak
er

 w
ith

 th
e 

ag
en

da
 fo

r t
he

 m
ee

tin
g 

 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f C

ity
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
  

Page 63



 
K

ey
 D

ec
is

io
ns

 
D

ec
is

io
n 

M
ak

er
 

E
xp

ec
te

d 
D

at
e 

of
 

D
ec

is
io

n 

P
ro

po
se

d 
 

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

D
oc

um
en

ts
 to

 b
e 

C
on

si
de

re
d 

by
 D

ec
is

io
n 

M
ak

er
 

Le
ad

 O
ff

ic
er

 
(T

o 
w

ho
m

 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 m

ad
e 

an
d 

em
ai

l 
ad

dr
es

s 
to

 s
en

d 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 to
) 

W
in

dm
ill

 P
rim

ar
y 

S
ch

oo
l -

 
E

xt
en

si
on

 W
or

ks
 to

 fo
rm

 
tw

o 
fo

rm
s 

of
 e

nt
ry

 s
ch

oo
l 

A
pp

ro
va

l t
o 

ca
rr

y 
ou

t 
ca

pi
ta

l w
or

ks
 a

nd
 in

cu
r 

ex
pe

nd
itu

re
 in

 re
la

tio
n 

to
 

th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 s
ch

em
e 

to
 

ca
rr

y 
ou

t e
xt

en
si

on
 w

or
ks

. 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
B

oa
rd

 
(P

or
tfo

lio
:  

C
hi

ld
re

n'
s 

S
er

vi
ce

s)
 

 

14
/1

/0
9 

W
in

dm
ill

 P
rim

ar
y 

S
ch

oo
l 

  

Th
e 

re
po

rt 
to

 b
e 

is
su

ed
 to

 
th

e 
de

ci
si

on
 m

ak
er

 w
ith

 th
e 

ag
en

da
 fo

r t
he

 m
ee

tin
g 

 

C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

of
 

E
du

ca
tio

n 
Le

ed
s 

  

D
es

ig
n 

C
os

t R
ep

or
t- 

Fa
rs

le
y 

C
C

 
To

 in
je

ct
 £

35
0k

 in
to

 th
e 

C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
C

ap
ita

l 
P

ro
gr

am
m

e 
an

d 
gi

ve
 

au
th

or
ity

 to
 in

cu
r t

hi
s 

ex
pe

nd
itu

re
. 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
B

oa
rd

 
(P

or
tfo

lio
: C

hi
ld

re
n'

s 
S

er
vi

ce
s)

 
 

14
/1

/0
9 

To
 in

je
ct

 £
35

0k
 in

to
 

th
e 

C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
C

ap
ita

l P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

an
d 

gi
ve

 a
ut

ho
rit

y 
to

 
in

cu
r t

hi
s 

ex
pe

nd
itu

re
. 

  

Th
e 

re
po

rt 
to

 b
e 

is
su

ed
 to

 
th

e 
de

ci
si

on
 m

ak
er

 w
ith

 th
e 

ag
en

da
 fo

r t
he

 m
ee

tin
g 

 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f C

hi
ld

re
n'

s 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

  

D
es

ig
n 

C
os

t R
ep

or
t- 

G
ar

fo
rth

 C
C

 
To

 in
je

ct
 £

45
0k

 in
to

 th
e 

C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
C

ap
ita

l 
P

ro
gr

am
m

e 
an

d 
gi

ve
 

au
th

or
ity

 to
 in

cu
r t

hi
s 

ex
pe

nd
itu

re
. 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
B

oa
rd

 
(P

or
tfo

lio
:  

C
hi

ld
re

n'
s 

S
er

vi
ce

s)
 

 

14
/1

/0
9 

E
du

ca
tio

n 
Le

ed
s,

 
C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
S

er
vi

ce
s,

 
P

ro
vi

de
rs

 a
nd

 
st

ak
eh

ol
de

rs
 c

ity
 w

id
e.

 
  

Th
e 

re
po

rt 
to

 b
e 

is
su

ed
 to

 
th

e 
de

ci
si

on
 m

ak
er

 w
ith

 th
e 

ag
en

da
 fo

r t
he

 m
ee

tin
g 

 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f C

hi
ld

re
n'

s 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

  

Page 64



 
K

ey
 D

ec
is

io
ns

 
D

ec
is

io
n 

M
ak

er
 

E
xp

ec
te

d 
D

at
e 

of
 

D
ec

is
io

n 

P
ro

po
se

d 
 

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

D
oc

um
en

ts
 to

 b
e 

C
on

si
de

re
d 

by
 D

ec
is

io
n 

M
ak

er
 

Le
ad

 O
ff

ic
er

 
(T

o 
w

ho
m

 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 m

ad
e 

an
d 

em
ai

l 
ad

dr
es

s 
to

 s
en

d 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 to
) 

U
D

P
 R

ev
ie

w
 S

av
ed

 
P

ol
ic

ie
s 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
B

oa
rd

 A
pp

ro
va

l 
of

 C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 fo
r t

he
 

S
ec

re
ta

ry
 o

f S
ta

te
’s

 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n.

 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
B

oa
rd

 
(P

or
tfo

lio
: 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t a
nd

 
R

eg
en

er
at

io
n)

 
 

14
/1

/0
9 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t P
la

n 
P

an
el

 
  

Th
e 

re
po

rt 
to

 b
e 

is
su

ed
 to

 
th

e 
de

ci
si

on
 m

ak
er

 w
ith

 th
e 

ag
en

da
 fo

r t
he

 m
ee

tin
g 

 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f C

ity
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
  

R
eg

io
na

l S
pa

tia
l S

tra
te

gy
 

R
ev

ie
w

- L
ee

ds
 C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il 
co

m
m

en
ts

 
E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

B
oa

rd
’s

 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n 

of
 C

ity
 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
co

m
m

en
ts

 in
 

re
sp

on
se

 to
 th

e 
R

S
S

 
R

ev
ie

w
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n.
 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
B

oa
rd

 
(P

or
tfo

lio
: 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t a
nd

 
R

eg
en

er
at

io
n)

 
 

14
/1

/0
9 

V
ia

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t P
la

n 
P

an
el

 
  

Th
e 

re
po

rt 
to

 b
e 

is
su

ed
 to

 
th

e 
de

ci
si

on
 m

ak
er

 w
ith

 th
e 

ag
en

da
 fo

r t
he

 m
ee

tin
g 

 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f C

ity
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
  

Page 65



 
K

ey
 D

ec
is

io
ns

 
D

ec
is

io
n 

M
ak

er
 

E
xp

ec
te

d 
D

at
e 

of
 

D
ec

is
io

n 

P
ro

po
se

d 
 

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

D
oc

um
en

ts
 to

 b
e 

C
on

si
de

re
d 

by
 D

ec
is

io
n 

M
ak

er
 

Le
ad

 O
ff

ic
er

 
(T

o 
w

ho
m

 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 m

ad
e 

an
d 

em
ai

l 
ad

dr
es

s 
to

 s
en

d 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 to
) 

A
du

lt 
S

oc
ia

l C
ar

e 
In

co
m

e 
R

ev
ie

w
 

To
 re

po
rt 

on
 th

e 
ou

tc
om

e 
of

 th
e 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

on
 

se
rv

ic
e 

us
er

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 
fo

r n
on

-r
es

id
en

tia
l s

er
vi

ce
s 

(h
om

e 
ca

re
, s

up
po

rte
d 

liv
in

g,
 d

ay
 c

ar
e,

 tr
an

sp
or

t, 
di

re
ct

 p
ay

m
en

ts
, t

el
ec

ar
e 

m
ob

ile
 re

sp
on

se
 s

er
vi

ce
, 

m
ea

ls
, r

es
pi

te
 c

ar
e 

an
d 

S
up

po
rti

ng
 P

eo
pl

e 
se

rv
ic

es
) a

nd
 re

qu
es

t 
E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

B
oa

rd
 a

pp
ro

ve
 a

 
ch

ar
gi

ng
 a

nd
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

po
lic

y 
fra

m
ew

or
k 

an
d 

ch
an

ge
s 

to
 s

er
vi

ce
 u

se
r 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

. 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
B

oa
rd

 
(P

or
tfo

lio
: A

du
lt 

H
ea

lth
 a

nd
 S

oc
ia

l 
C

ar
e)

 
 

14
/1

/0
9 

S
er

vi
ce

 u
se

rs
 a

nd
 

ca
re

rs
, V

ol
un

ta
ry

 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

ns
 

re
pr

es
en

tin
g 

se
rv

ic
e 

us
er

s 
an

d 
ca

re
rs

, 
C

iti
ze

ns
 p

an
el

, 
M

em
be

rs
 o

f t
he

 p
ub

lic
, 

B
rie

fin
gs

 fo
r m

em
be

rs
, 

st
af

f a
nd

 s
er

vi
ce

 
pr

ov
id

er
s.

 
  

Th
e 

re
po

rt 
to

 b
e 

is
su

ed
 to

 
th

e 
de

ci
si

on
 m

ak
er

 w
ith

 th
e 

ag
en

da
 fo

r t
he

 m
ee

tin
g 

 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f A

du
lt 

S
oc

ia
l 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
an

n.
hi

ll@
le

ed
s.

go
v.

uk
 

 

3r
d 

Q
ua

rte
r F

in
an

ci
al

 
H

ea
lth

 R
ep

or
t 

In
 n

ot
in

g 
th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 

po
si

tio
n 

af
te

r n
in

e 
m

on
th

s 
fo

r t
he

 a
ut

ho
rit

y 
a 

de
ci

si
on

 
w

ill
 b

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
as

 to
 th

e 
tre

at
m

en
t o

f a
ny

 v
ar

ia
tio

n 
id

en
tif

ie
d.

 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
B

oa
rd

 
(P

or
tfo

lio
:C

en
tra

l 
an

d 
C

or
po

ra
te

) 
 

13
/2

/0
9 

   

Th
e 

re
po

rt 
to

 b
e 

is
su

ed
 to

 
th

e 
de

ci
si

on
 m

ak
er

 w
ith

 th
e 

ag
en

da
 fo

r t
he

 m
ee

tin
g 

 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f R

es
ou

rc
es

 
  

Page 66



 
K

ey
 D

ec
is

io
ns

 
D

ec
is

io
n 

M
ak

er
 

E
xp

ec
te

d 
D

at
e 

of
 

D
ec

is
io

n 

P
ro

po
se

d 
 

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

D
oc

um
en

ts
 to

 b
e 

C
on

si
de

re
d 

by
 D

ec
is

io
n 

M
ak

er
 

Le
ad

 O
ff

ic
er

 
(T

o 
w

ho
m

 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 m

ad
e 

an
d 

em
ai

l 
ad

dr
es

s 
to

 s
en

d 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 to
) 

B
an

ks
id

e-
 P

ro
vi

si
on

 o
f 

N
ew

ly
 B

ui
lt 

S
ch

oo
l 

G
iv

e 
ap

pr
ov

al
 to

 in
cu

r 
ca

pi
ta

l e
xp

en
di

tu
re

 in
 

re
la

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 

sc
he

m
e 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

 n
ew

 
bu

ild
 s

ch
oo

l a
t B

an
ks

id
e 

P
rim

ar
y 

S
ch

oo
l. 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
B

oa
rd

 
(P

or
tfo

lio
: C

hi
ld

re
n'

s 
S

er
vi

ce
s)

 
 

13
/2

/0
9 

C
on

su
lta

tio
ns

 w
ill

 
in

cl
ud

e 
pu

bl
ic

 m
ee

tin
g 

w
ith

 G
ov

er
no

rs
, 

pa
re

nt
s 

sc
ho

ol
 u

se
rs

 
an

d 
co

m
m

un
ity

 in
 

at
te

nd
an

ce
, f

ul
l w

ar
d 

co
un

ci
llo

r b
rie

fin
g,

 fu
ll 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

w
ith

 
go

ve
rn

in
g 

bo
dy

, 
sc

ho
ol

 u
se

rs
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

pa
re

nt
s,

 p
up

ils
 a

nd
 

co
m

m
un

ity
 u

se
rs

, a
nd

 
ot

he
r C

ou
nc

il 
se

rv
ic

es
. 

  

Th
e 

re
po

rt 
to

 b
e 

is
su

ed
 to

 
th

e 
de

ci
si

on
 m

ak
er

 w
ith

 th
e 

ag
en

da
 fo

r t
he

 m
ee

tin
g 

 

C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

of
 

E
du

ca
tio

n 
Le

ed
s 

  

A
65

 Q
ua

lit
y 

B
us

 In
iti

at
iv

e 
- 

La
nd

 A
cq

ui
si

tio
n 

A
ut

ho
rit

y 
to

 in
cu

r 
ex

pe
nd

itu
re

 o
f u

p 
to

 £
2.

5 
m

ill
io

n 
to

 a
cq

ui
re

 la
nd

s 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

to
 c

on
st

ru
ct

 th
e 

A
65

 Q
B

I S
ch

em
e.

 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
B

oa
rd

 
(P

or
tfo

lio
 : 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t a
nd

 
R

eg
en

er
at

io
n)

 
 

13
/2

/0
9 

O
ng

oi
ng

 C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

P
ub

lic
 In

qu
iry

 h
el

d 
in

 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

00
8.

 
  

Th
e 

re
po

rt 
to

 b
e 

is
su

ed
 to

 
th

e 
de

ci
si

on
 m

ak
er

 w
ith

 th
e 

ag
en

da
 fo

r t
he

 m
ee

tin
g.

 
 

C
hi

ef
 H

ig
hw

ay
s 

O
ffi

ce
r 

pa
ul

.ru
ss

el
l@

le
ed

s.
go

v
.u

k 
 

Page 67



 
K

ey
 D

ec
is

io
ns

 
D

ec
is

io
n 

M
ak

er
 

E
xp

ec
te

d 
D

at
e 

of
 

D
ec

is
io

n 

P
ro

po
se

d 
 

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

D
oc

um
en

ts
 to

 b
e 

C
on

si
de

re
d 

by
 D

ec
is

io
n 

M
ak

er
 

Le
ad

 O
ff

ic
er

 
(T

o 
w

ho
m

 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 m

ad
e 

an
d 

em
ai

l 
ad

dr
es

s 
to

 s
en

d 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 to
) 

A
63

9 
A

rla
 L

an
ds

lip
 

To
 a

pp
ro

ve
 e

xp
en

di
tu

re
 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
to

 m
ak

e 
th

e 
ca

rr
ia

ge
w

ay
 s

af
e 

an
d 

ke
ep

 
th

is
 im

po
rta

nt
 li

nk
 o

pe
n 

to
 

tra
ffi

c.
 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
B

oa
rd

 
(P

or
tfo

lio
: 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t a
nd

 
R

eg
en

er
at

io
n)

 
 

13
/2

/0
9 

N
/A

 
  

Th
e 

re
po

rt 
to

 b
e 

is
su

ed
 to

 
th

e 
de

ci
si

on
 m

ak
er

 w
ith

 th
e 

ag
en

da
 fo

r t
he

 m
ee

tin
g 

 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f C

ity
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
  

R
en

ew
al

 o
f L

ia
bi

lit
y 

In
su

ra
nc

e 
C

ov
er

 w
ith

 e
ffe

ct
 

fro
m

 1
st

 A
pr

il 
20

09
 

To
 p

la
ce

 th
e 

an
nu

al
 li

ab
ili

ty
 

in
su

ra
nc

e 
co

ve
r w

ith
 a

n 
in

su
re

r s
ub

je
ct

 to
 a

 lo
ng

 
te

rm
 a

gr
ee

m
en

t. 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 

  

4/
3/

09
 

N
on

e 
  

Li
ab

ili
ty

 In
su

ra
nc

e 
P

ro
gr

am
m

e 
Te

nd
er

 
D

oc
um

en
ts

 
 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f R

es
ou

rc
es

 
ro

be
rt.

da
vi

so
n@

le
ed

s.
go

v.
uk

 
 

 

Page 68



  N
O

TE
S

 
 K

ey
 d

ec
is

io
ns

  a
re

 th
os

e 
ex

ec
ut

iv
e 

de
ci

si
on

s:
 

•
 

w
hi

ch
 re

su
lt 

in
 th

e 
au

th
or

ity
 in

cu
rr

in
g 

ex
pe

nd
itu

re
 o

r m
ak

in
g 

sa
vi

ng
s 

ov
er

 £
25

0,
00

0 
pe

r a
nn

um
, o

r 
•
 

ar
e 

lik
el

y 
to

 h
av

e 
a 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 e

ffe
ct

 o
n 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 li
vi

ng
 o

r w
or

ki
ng

 in
 a

n 
ar

ea
 c

om
pr

is
in

g 
tw

o 
or

 m
or

e 
w

ar
ds

 
 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
B

oa
rd

 P
or

tf
ol

io
s 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
M

em
be

r 
 

C
en

tra
l a

nd
 C

or
po

ra
te

 
C

ou
nc

ill
or

 R
ic

ha
rd

 B
re

tt 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t a
nd

 R
eg

en
er

at
io

n 
C

ou
nc

ill
or

 A
nd

re
w

 C
ar

te
r 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l S
er

vi
ce

s 
C

ou
nc

ill
or

 S
te

ve
 S

m
ith

 

N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
s 

an
d 

H
ou

si
ng

 
C

ou
nc

ill
or

 J
oh

n 
Le

sl
ie

 C
ar

te
r 

Le
is

ur
e 

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 J

oh
n 

P
ro

ct
er

 

C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
 

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 S

te
w

ar
t G

ol
to

n 

Le
ar

ni
ng

 
C

ou
nc

ill
or

 R
ic

ha
rd

 H
ar

ke
r 

A
du

lt 
H

ea
lth

 a
nd

 S
oc

ia
l C

ar
e 

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 P

et
er

 H
ar

ra
nd

 

Le
ad

er
 o

f t
he

 L
ab

ou
r G

ro
up

 
C

ou
nc

ill
or

 K
ei

th
 W

ak
ef

ie
ld

 

Le
ad

er
 o

f t
he

 M
or

le
y 

B
or

ou
gh

 
In

de
pe

nd
en

t G
ro

up
 

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 R

ob
er

t F
in

ni
ga

n 

A
dv

is
or

y 
M

em
be

r 
C

ou
nc

ill
or

 J
ud

ith
 B

la
ke

 

 In
 c

as
es

 w
he

re
 K

ey
 D

ec
is

io
ns

 to
 b

e 
ta

ke
n 

by
 th

e 
E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

B
oa

rd
 a

re
 n

ot
 in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 th
e 

P
la

n,
 5

 d
ay

s 
no

tic
e 

of
 th

e 
in

te
nt

io
n 

to
 ta

ke
 s

uc
h 

de
ci

si
on

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
gi

ve
n 

by
 w

ay
 o

f t
he

 a
ge

nd
a 

fo
r t

he
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

B
oa

rd
 m

ee
tin

g.
  

Page 69



Page 70

This page is intentionally left blank



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 3rd December, 2008 

 

EXECUTIVE BOARD 
 

WEDNESDAY, 5TH NOVEMBER, 2008 
 

PRESENT: 
 

Councillor R Brett in the Chair 

 Councillors A Carter, J L Carter, 
R Finnigan, S Golton, R Harker, P Harrand, 
J Procter, S Smith and K Wakefield 

 
   Councillor J Blake – Non voting advisory member 
 

113 Exclusion of the Public  
RESOLVED – That the public be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following parts of the agenda designated exempt on the 
grounds that it is likely, in view of the nature of the business to be transacted 
or the nature of the proceedings, that if members of the public were present 
there would be disclosure to them of exempt information so designated as 
follows: 
(a) Appendices 7 and 8 to the report referred to in minute 120 under the 

terms of Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3) and on the 
grounds that the information contained in the appendices relates to the 
financial or business affairs of Bellway Homes Ltd, Bellway PLC, and 
the council. This information is not publicly available from the statutory 
registers of information kept in respect of certain companies and 
charities.  It is considered that it is not in the public interest to disclose 
this information at this point in time as this could prejudice the 
commercial interests of the parties to the Shareholders Agreement.  In 
particular, if Bellway or the Council wished to negotiate terms with 
other potential developers of a phase or part of a phase, those 
developers might gain an advantage in those negotiations by knowing 
the full commercial terms agreed in respect of exclusivity, competition 
and incentivisation, and how costs are met in respect of the phase 
approval process.  

 
It is considered that whilst there may be a public interest in disclosure, 
the council’s statutory obligations under sec 123 of the Local 
Government Act 1972, and under sec 32 of the Housing Act 1985 and 
the General Housing Consents 2005 to achieve the best consideration 
that can reasonably be obtained are unaffected by these 
arrangements, and indeed the phase approval process provides for this 
to be demonstrated at the initial stage of the process.  In addition, 
much information about the terms of particular land transactions 
between the parties will be publicly available from the Land Registry  
following completion and registration.  Consequently it is considered 
that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the 
public interest in disclosing this information at this point in time.   

 
(b) Appendices 1 and 2 and associated plans as referred to in minute 133 

under the terms of Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3) and 

Page 71



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 3rd December, 2008 

 

on the grounds, that as they evaluate the short listed bidders’ 
proposals and their financial offers to develop the arena, compares the 
bidder’s financial offers with the evolving Public Sector Comparators 
and set out the basis of the Council’s legal agreements and funding 
contribution to facilitate the development of the arena, it is considered 
that the public interest in maintaining this information as exempt 
outweighs the public interest in disclosing the developer’s proposals, 
the terms of the respective legal agreements and funding provision, as 
disclosure may prejudice the outcome of the procurement process and 
the cost to the Council for developing the arena. 

 
114 Late Items  

The Chair admitted the following late item to the agenda as follows: 
 
Department of Health Extra Care Housing Fund Bid 2008-2010 (Minute 127) 
 
The signed partnership agreement for the development must be in place by 
November 2008 in accordance with the terms of the grant by the Department 
of Health. 
 

115 Declaration of Interests  
Councillor J Procter declared a personal interest in the item entitled, 
‘Proposed Leeds Arena – Selection of Preferred Developer/Site’, (minute 133) 
as the Chair of one of the subject companies was known to him. 
 
Councillor Brett declared a personal interest in the item entitled, ‘Older 
People’s Day Services: Service Improvement Plan’, (minute 125) as a 
member of Burmantofts Senior Action Committee. 
 
Councillor Finnigan declared a personal interest in the item entitled, ‘Skills 
Pledge, Train to Gain and Apprenticeships’, (minute 131) as a Governor of 
Joseph Priestley College. 
 
Councillor Blake declared a personal interest in the item entitled, 
‘Implementation of the Mental Health Act 2007’, (minute 128) as a member of 
Leeds NHS Primary Care Trust. 
 

116 Minutes  
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 8th October 2008 be 
approved. 
 
DEVELOPMENT AND REGENERATION 
 

117 Adoption of the Supplementary Planning Document of the Street Design 
Guide and Response to the Deputation of the National Federation of the 
Blind  
The Director of City Development submitted a report on the outcome of 
consultation on the Street Design Guide, on its proposed adoption as a 
Supplementary Planning Document and as a response to the concerns 

Page 72



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 3rd December, 2008 

 

expressed by the Leeds Branch of the National Federation of the Blind in their 
deputation to Council on 10th September 2008. 
 
The Board noted that additional information which related to this matter had 
been received from the Leeds Branch of the National Federation of the Blind. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report be deferred, with a further report being 
submitted to the Board following the consideration of the additional 
information received from the Leeds Branch of the National Federation of the 
Blind. 
 
NEIGHBOURHOODS AND HOUSING 
 

118 Area Delivery Plans for 2008/09  
The Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods  submitted a report seeking 
endorsement of the 10 Area Delivery Plans. 
 
RESOLVED – That the 2008/09 Area Delivery Plans produced by the Area 
Committees be endorsed. 
 

119 Public Private Finance Initiative Round 6 - Submission of Expression of 
Interest  
The Chief Regeneration Officer submitted a report on the development of an 
expression of interest for the implementation of a programme of new house 
building in the city in order to create a range of Extra Care and Lifetime 
Homes provision in key locations through the support of Housing PFI Credits. 
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That approval be given for the submission of the Expression of Interest 

to the CLG for Round 6 Housing PFI Credits of £271,000,000. 
(b) That an Outline Business Case be developed for the implementation of 

a programme of new house building in the City to create a range of 
Extra Care and Lifetime Homes housing through the support of Round 
6 Housing PFI Credits. 

(c) That a further report be brought to this Board in early 2009 identifying 
land which will be required to deliver the programme. 

 
120 EASEL Joint Venture Partnership  

The Directors of Environment and Neighbourhoods and City Development 
submitted a joint report on a proposal to set up and operate a joint venture 
partnership through a private limited company with Bellway plc and Bellway 
Homes Ltd to deliver the Council’s regeneration programme in east and south 
east Leeds. 
 
Following consideration of appendices 7 and 8 to the report, designated as 
exempt under Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3), which were 
considered in private at the conclusion of the meeting it was 
 
 
 

Page 73



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 3rd December, 2008 

 

RESOLVED – 
(a) That the Board reaffirms that the primary objective of the EASEL 

initiative is to promote and improve the economic, social and 
environmental wellbeing of the EASEL area and its residents, having 
considered all of the matters in section 2 of the Local Government Act 
2000 as set out in the report, and having also considered all of the 
evidence set out in the report relating to how the initiative is likely to 
promote and improve wellbeing in the EASEL area, and agrees that 
each aspect of the arrangements set out in the report is likely to 
promote or improve the economic, social and environmental wellbeing 
of the EASEL area and its residents in the manner set out in the report. 

(b) That the terms of the Shareholders’ Agreement for the Joint Venture 
Company as set out in the report be approved by Executive Board, 
together with the establishment of the JVCo with Bellway. 

(c) That the first EASEL phase plan, showing the sixteen sites considered 
as priority for development in the EASEL area be approved. 

(d) That the initial eight sites to be developed through the JVCo be 
approved. 

(e) That delegation to the Director of City  Development be authorised to 
make amendments to the phase plan to ensure the effective operation 
of the JVCo as set out in appendix 3 of the report. 

(f) That  the Directors of City  Development and Environment and 
Neighbourhoods and Assistant Chief Executive (Corporate 
Governance) be authorised to conclude and execute the Shareholders’ 
Agreement on behalf of the Council as set out in the report. 

(g) That the development, by the JVCo, of the five neighbourhood plans be 
approved and that the Chief Regeneration Officer be authorised to 
manage the production of the neighbourhood plans with the JVCo 
subject to the completed plans being brought to this Board for final 
approval. 

(h) That the use of the business case for project development to be 
operated by the JVCo be approved subject to final approval (by the 
Council as JVCo shareholder) of a project by Executive Board. 

(i) That the delegations to the Chief Regeneration Officer and Director of 
City Development for the development of projects as set out in 
appendix 3 of the report be approved. 

(j) That, as prospective shareholder, approval be given to the initial draft 
business plan and draft budget for the JVCo and to the delegations to 
officers to participate in the management of the JVCo as set out in 
appendix 3 of the report. 

(k) That approval be given to the use of entry premium to fund the working 
capital of the company subject to approval of the JVCo draft business 
plan and draft budget. 

(l) That the arrangements for providing additional working capital to the 
company once the entry premium is spent be noted. 

(m) That the company dividends policy be approved and that responsibility 
on these issues be delegated to the Director of Resources as set out in 
appendix 3 of the report. 

Page 74



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 3rd December, 2008 

 

(n) That the development of an equity loan scheme on the first phase of 
the EASEL development sites using a commuted sum mechanism be 
authorised. 

(o) That the delegations to the Chief Housing Services Officer on the 
details of the scheme be authorised. 

(p) That the transfer of the remaining funds from the Amberton Park equity 
loan scheme to the EASEL equity loan scheme be approved. 

(q) That the nomination of the Council’s initial  directors to the company be 
the Directors of City Development and of Environment and 
Neighbourhoods as unpaid directors subject to their acceptance of 
office and of the directors mandate. 

(r) That the directors mandate for the Council’s directors and the provision 
by the Council of the necessary indemnity insurance for the Council’s 
directors be approved. 

(s) That the arrangements for the appointment of future directors and 
deputies as set out in appendix 3 of the report be approved. 

(t) That a report be submitted to the Board providing further information on 
the regenerative aspects of the project in addition to other potential 
sources of funding which could be pursued.  

 
121 A Strategy for Improving Leeds Private Sector Housing  

The Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods submitted a report on 
proposed future investment and regeneration proposals for private sector 
housing in Leeds with reference to findings of recent research into back-to-
back housing and the most recent Leeds Private Sector Housing Condition 
Survey. 
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That the findings of the report together with the actions undertaken by 

the Council to improve the private rented sector stock be noted. 
(b) That a further report be brought to this Board on urgent action to tackle 

poor quality private housing. 
(c) That a detailed submission be made to the Homes and Communities 

Agency setting out a costed programme of investment over the next 
five years. 

(d) That a report be brought back to this Board on the outcome of 
discussions as part of a comprehensive plan to improve private sector 
housing in Leeds with a focus on back-to-back housing. 

 
CHILDREN'S SERVICES 
 

122 Deputation to Council - The need of Local Schools  and Communities for 
Sports Facilities in the Hyde Park Area  
The Chief Executive of Education Leeds submitted a report in response to the 
deputation to Council from local Hyde Park residents on 10th September 2008. 
 
A revised version of the report which provided more detailed information in the 
form of paragraphs 5.3 to 5.5, and minor clarification to wording in paragraph 
5.1, had been circulated to Members prior to the meeting. 
 

Page 75



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 3rd December, 2008 

 

RESOLVED – That the report be deferred, with a further report being 
submitted to the Board for consideration in due course.  
 

123 Inclusion and Early Support: Hawthorn Centre Deputation to Council  
The Acting Chief Officer Early Years and Integrated Youth Service submitted 
a report  in response to the deputation to Council from representatives of 
Leeds Mencap on 10th September 2008. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Board accept the report showing how Hawthorn had 
the opportunity to be involved throughout the commissioning process and how 
as a result of that process, services will continue to be provided that meet the 
needs of disabled children and their families and look to further develop the 
quality of that support in the future. 
 
(Under the provisions of Council Procedure Rule 16.5, Councillor Wakefield 
required it to be recorded that he abstained from voting on the decisions 
contained within this minute) 
 
LEISURE 
 

124 Radio Frequency Identification (RFID) New Technology in Libraries - 
Phases 3 and 4.  
The Director of City Development submitted a report on a proposal to 
complete the installation programme of Radio Frequency Identification 
technology in libraries to enable self service within libraries allowing them to 
open for longer hours at a reduced cost. 
 
RESOLVED – That approval be given for the injection of £1,249,950 into the 
2008/09 Capital Programme, funded by the Strategic Development Fund, and 
that scheme expenditure in the same amount be authorised. 
 
ADULT HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE 
 

125 Older People's Day Services: Service Improvement Plan  
Further to minute 46 of the meeting held on 16th July 2008 the Director of 
Adult Social Services submitted a report on progress of work undertaken to 
implement the proposals which were approved and on other ongoing work in 
relation to the pilots and developing locality plans which will set out how the 
service model will be delivered city wide. 
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That the Board notes the work which has been done to implement the 

decision of July 2008 relating to Richmond Hill Day Centre, Farfield, 
the Willows and Pendas Way and agrees the proposal that day 
services no longer be provided on those sites. 

(b) That the related commitment to reinvest in older people’s services be 
noted together with the progress being made to develop locality plans 
to deliver the new service model through pilots, consultation and other 
detailed work. 

Page 76



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 3rd December, 2008 

 

(c) That further reports be brought to this Board in 2009 as the change 
process progresses. 

 
(Under the provisions of Council Procedure Rule 16.5, Councillor Wakefield 
requested it to be recorded that he abstained from voting on the decisions 
contained within this minute). 
 

126 The Mental Capacity Act 2005  
The Director of Adult Social Services submitted a report on the principal 
requirements and implications associated with the implementation in Leeds of 
the Mental Capacity Act 2005 and outlining the requirements of the 
Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards which are incorporated into the Act. 
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That the key features of the Act, as highlighted in the report, be noted 

together with progress made to date in its full implementation and the 
plans which are being progressed to raise greater awareness among 
the public of its provisions and implications. 

(b) That the content of the annual report of the Articulate Advocacy 
Service also be noted. 

 
127 Department of Health Extra Care Housing Fund Bid: 2008-2010  

Further to minute 94 of the meeting held on 8th October 2008, the Chief 
Officer Adult Social Care submitted a report which clarified the cost 
implications of the proposal to redevelop Hemingway House older persons 
residential home in Hunslet. 
 
RESOLVED –  
(a). That the proposal to develop 45 units of Extra Care Housing for older 
people on the site of Hemingway House, in partnership with Methodist Homes 
Association and the Primary Care Trust be approved. 
(b). That the sale of the land at Hemingway House at less than best value to a 
value foregone of £525,000 be endorsed. 
 

128 Implementation of The Mental Health Act 2007  
The Director of Adult Social Services submitted a report advising of the main 
changes to the Mental Health Act and on the submission of the  
Implementation Self Assessment Tool to the Department of Health in June of 
this year. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted. 
 
CENTRAL AND CORPORATE 
 

129 Financial Health Monitoring 2008/09 -  Half Year Report  
The Director of Resources submitted  a report on the Council’s financial 
health position for 2008/09 after six months of the financial year, covering 
revenue expenditure and income to date compared to the approved budget, 
the projected year end position and proposed actions to work towards 
achieving a balanced budget by the year end. The report also provided an 

Page 77



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 3rd December, 2008 

 

update on the general fund capital programme and highlighted the position in 
relation to other key financial indicators. 
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That the projected financial position of the authority after six months of 

the new financial year be noted. 
(b) That directorates continue to develop and implement action plans. 
(c) That Council be recommended to approve the budget adjustments as 

described in section 3 of the report. 
 
(Under the provisions of Council Procedure Rule 16.5, Councillor Wakefield 
required it to be recorded that he abstained from voting on the decisions 
contained within this minute). 
 

130 Treasury Management Strategy Update 2008/09  
The Director of Resources submitted a report providing a review and update 
of the Treasury Management Strategy for 2008/09 which was approved by the 
Board on 8th February 2008. 
 
RESOLVED –  
(a). That the report be noted. 
(b). That the Board’s thanks be extended to those colleagues employed within 
the field of Treasury Management for the valuable work which they continue 
to undertake.  
 

131 Skills Pledge, Train to Gain and Apprenticeships  
The Director of Resources submitted a report on three key initiatives arising 
from the national skills improvement agenda, namely ‘The Skills Pledge’, 
‘Train to Gain Funds’ and ‘Apprenticeships’. 
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That this Board endorses the signing of the Skills Pledge and the 

associated action plan to ensure maximisation of Train to Gain funding 
and improved skills levels. 

(b) That the changes in approach to the provision of apprenticeships in the  
Council be noted. 

 
132 Information Governance Framework  

The Assistant Chief Executive (Planning, Policy and Improvement) submitted 
a report on a proposed Information Governance Framework as the corporate 
model for implementing information governance across the Council. 
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That the Information Governance Framework be approved as a method 

for defining the Council’s approach to information governance and 
setting out the policies, procedures and standards required to deliver 
the information governance objectives. 

(b) That the intention of the Assistant Chief Executive (Planning, Policy 
and Improvement) to sign-off relevant policies and procedures 

Page 78



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 3rd December, 2008 

 

associated with the Framework under the Council’s delegated decision 
making arrangements be endorsed. 

 
DEVELOPMENT AND REGENERATION 
 

133 Proposed Leeds Arena, Selection of Preferred Developer/Site  
The Director of City Development submitted a report on progress made with 
the procurement of a developer and site for the proposed Leeds Arena, on the 
proposed preferred and reserve sites for the development and necessary 
financial approvals. 
 
Appendices 1 and 2 and associated plans were designated as exempt under 
Access to Information  Procedure Rule 10.4(3). Appendix 2 and associated 
plans were circulated at the meeting. 
 
Following consideration of the 2 exempt appendices and associated plans in 
private at the conclusion of the meeting it was  
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That the developer procurement competition for the arena be 

terminated without the award of a contract. 
(b) That Claypit Lane be approved as the preferred site for the 

development of an arena. 
(c) That Elland Road be approved as the reserve site for the development 

of an arena. 
(d) That in the event that the preferred site cannot be delivered or it 

ceases to be the most economically viable or it no longer offers the 
best value for money to the Council, the Director of City Development 
with the concurrence of the Executive Member for Development and 
Regeneration be authorised to take appropriate action to pursue the 
development at Elland Road as the reserve site for the proposed 
development of an arena. 

(e) That the acquisition of the site of the Brunswick Building from Leeds 
Metropolitan University on the terms detailed in the report be approved. 

(f) That the Directors of Resources and City Development be authorised 
to enter into a legal agreement with Town Centre Car Parks Ltd on the 
terms as detailed in the report on the basis that such an agreement is 
economically advantageous to the Council and will financially support 
the development of an arena on the preferred site. 

(g) That authority be given to incur expenditure as detailed in the report 
from existing Capital Scheme No 13307 on the acquisition of the site of 
the Brunswick Building, its demolition and the cost of fees to progress 
design/cost proposals and the project delivery model. 

(h) That officers report back on the proposed project delivery model and 
scheme proposals/costs for the development of an arena on the 
preferred site. 

(i) That the transfer of funds as detailed in the report from the Strategic 
Development Fund into existing Capital Scheme No 13307 be 
authorised. 

Page 79



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 3rd December, 2008 

 

(j) That authority be given  for an injection of funds as detailed in the 
report into existing Capital Scheme No 13307, comprising funding from 
Yorkshire Forward (subject to formal approval from the Yorkshire 
Forward Board) with the balance in the first instance to be funded from 
unsupported borrowing. 

 
(The matters referred to in this minute were not eligible for Call In on the basis 
that the City Council took the decision to pursue a two stream procurement 
process to select a preferred developer/site for the proposed arena at a 
meeting of the Executive Board on 13 December 2006.  Thereafter, at its 
meeting on 4 July 2007, Executive Board authorised the Director of City 
Development under the Council’s scheme of delegation, to approve the short 
listing of potential developers/sites during the Competitive Dialogue 
Procurement process. Both decisions taken by the Executive Board were 
subject to the Council’s Call In procedures.  The decisions contained within 
this minute which relate to the selection of the preferred site for the arena are 
consistent with the decisions taken by Executive Board in December 2006 
and July 2007. 
 
The matters relating to the proposed legal agreements to be entered into to 
progress the arena development on the preferred site, the proposed funding 
arrangements and the authority to incur expenditure, were also designated as 
exempt from Call In. This is due to the fact that under the Council’s 
Constitution, a decision may be declared as being Exempt from Call In if it is 
considered that any delay in concluding the funding arrangements and legal 
agreements may result in parties to the agreements seeking to renegotiate 
the terms of such agreements and as such could increase the level of public 
sector gap funding required to facilitate the arena development.) 
 

134 Former Horsforth Library - Refurbishment for Youth Centre and Area 
Management Team Accommodation  
The Director of City Development submitted a report on the proposed 
refurbishment of the former Horsforth library building to provide 
accommodation for a youth centre and the area management team and for 
use by the Area Committee. 
 
RESOLVED – That authority be given for expenditure of £895,000 on this 
scheme. 
 

135 Proposed Takeover of HBOS by Lloyds TSB  
The Director of City Development submitted a report providing an update on 
the action being taken locally in relation to the proposed takeover of HBOS by 
Lloyds TSB; the takeover of Bradford and Bingley by the Government, and 
sale of some of its assets. 
 
The Board was advised of the recent announcement that the Carlsberg Tetley 
Brewery in Leeds was due to close in 2011. In response the Board discussed 
potential ways in which the Council could assist those affected by the closure.  
 

Page 80



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 3rd December, 2008 

 

RESOLVED – That the report be noted, that the actions being taken be 
endorsed and that further reports be brought back to the Board as the position 
becomes clearer. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES 
 

136 Waste Solution for Leeds - Residual Waste Treatment PFI Project - 
Evaluation Methodology and Update  
The Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods submitted  a report on 
progress of the project, on proposed criteria and sub-criteria for the evaluation 
of bids, identifying a price ceiling above which bidders may be disqualified and 
on the proposed approach to dealing with third party waste. 
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That the report be noted and approval given to the criteria, sub-criteria 

and weightings for the evaluation of bids received for the project. 
(b) That the revised Price Ceiling resulting from the change in the waste 

flow model be noted and that this Board approves that any bids 
received above this ceiling may not proceed further in the procurement. 

(c) That the approach towards third party waste be approved. 
 
(Under the provisions of Council Procedure Rule 16.5, Councillor Wakelfield 
required it to be recorded that he voted against the decisions taken in this 
minute) 
 
DATE OF PUBLICATION:   7TH NOVEMBER 2008 
LAST DATE FOR CALL IN: 14TH NOVEMBER 2008 
 
 
(Scrutiny Support will notify Directors of any items Called  In by 12.00 noon on 
Monday 17th November 2008) 
 
 
 
 

Page 81



Page 82

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	7 Additional Session - Skills Inquiry
	Approved  t of r Skills includes final RN comments

	8 Draft Statement - University Fees
	Revisedby SBoard Final University Fees Draft Statement


